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To be the leading community development financial
institution in Central Asia.

KOMPANION GOALS:
Foster the growth of small businesses and promote
social entrepreneurship
Help customers build healthy,
financially stable communities
Promote natural resources conservation and good
management practices to our customers and
communities
Measure success based on impact evaluation
Lead social enterprise innovation in Central Asia

DEAR CUSTOMERS, SHAREHOLDERS AND PARTNERS!

I am pleased to present you with the annual report of the activities of Kompanion Bank
for 2016.
It should be noted that 2016 was a difficult year for the global economy, but Kyrgyzstan
successfully emerged from a period of instability in the foreign exchange market, becoming
one of the few countries to see a strengthening of the national currency. The return of the
economy to the pre-crisis levels gives us renewed optimism and new opportunities, and at
the same time, it gives us new challenges.
I am pleased to inform you that 2016 was another successful period of active development
and qualitative transformations for Kompanion Bank. While obtaining the banking license
and transformation into a bank were the most strategically important achievements during
the year, we also enter the year ahead with confidence after launching our main banking
products and services, including deposits, international money transfers, SME lending,
payment and settlement services,“Elcard” payment cards and establishing correspondent
relations with foreign banks.
Of course, we would not have achieved all of these things without the support of
our shareholders, our Board of Directors and our clients as well as the high level of
professionalism of our employees. We would like to express our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders and our Board of Directors for their reliable cooperation, to our clients for
their trust and to our employees for their commitment to the bank!
In 2017, we will continue to actively work on introducing additional banking services and
becoming better, closer and more convenient for our clients. We are confident that the
further implementation of our chosen strategy will allow Kompanion Bank to strengthen
its position in the financial market of our country.
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Sincerely,
Ulanbek Termechikov
Chief Executive Officer
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1 038
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1 053

# OF OFFICES

32

29

42
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141
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TOTAL CLIENTS

CAGR (COMPOUND AVERAGE GROWTH RATE2)

LOAN

PORTFOLIO

TOTAL

CLIENTS

35%

22%

# OF STAFF

# OF OFFICES

18%

11%

1 - ОБМЕННЫЙ КУРС НБКР ПО СОСТОЯНИЮ НА 31 ДЕКАБРЯ 2015 ГОДА, СОСТАВИЛ 75.8993 СОМОВ К 1 ДОЛЛАРУ США
2 - ССТР - СОВОКУПНЫЙ СРЕДНЕГОДОВAОЙ ТЕМП РОСТА РАСЧИТЫВАЕТСЯ ПО ФОРМУЛЕ
((ПОРТФЕЛЬ 2015 Г. / ПОРТФЕЛЬ 2004 Г.) ^ (1/10)-1)

1 - Exchange rate of NBKR as of December 31, 2016 constituted 69.2301 KGS to 1 USD
2 - CAGR - Compound Average Growth Rate, calculated as ((Portfolio 2016 / Portfolio 2004) ^ (1/12)-1)
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JANUARY
Obtaining a banking license
On January 11, 2016, the National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic issued full license for Kompanion Bank
CJSC to conduct banking operations in both national and foreign currencies. The banking license
has allowed Kompanion to expand the range of its offered services and open new access channels
for banking products (deposits, remittances, and foreign exchange transactions) which our clients
are demanding. After having moved to a new level of development, Kompanion Bank continues to
follow its mission - to be the leading community development financial institution in Central Asia.
Partnership with Deposit Protection Agency
On January 16, Kompanion Bank joined the deposit protection system of the Kyrgyz Republic. The
bank deposit protection system is aimed at ensuring additional protection of rights and legal interests
of commercial banks depositors, building confidence in the banking system and encouraging
the population to deposit their savings with the banking system of the country. These protection
mechanisms are implemented in accordance with the Law of the Kyrgyz Republic “On protection of
bank deposits.”
MARCH
Launch of deposit products
On March 1, Kompanion Bank launched the deposit product line for individuals and legal entities:
“Regular Income,” “Savings Plan,” and “Future Millionaire.” The clients of the Bank now have access
to a convenient and safe financial instrument that allows people to save and grow their funds.
Cooperation with State Mortgage Company
On March 11, 2016, Kompanion Bank signed the General Agreement for Cooperation with the State
Mortgage Company and joined the KR Government Program “Affordable Housing 2015-2020”.
The program is aimed at contributing to the sustainable development of the Kyrgyz economy by
developing the mortgage market, increasing access to housing, and tackling social problems relating
to housing, for the well-being of society and the improvement of living standards.
AUGUST
Launching international money transfer systems
Kompanion Bank launched Zolotaya Korona (Golden Crown), Contact international money transfer
systems and foreign currency remittances via SWIFT. With access to several money transfer systems
and an expanded branch network, Kopmanion’s clients may quickly and safely transfer money in
national and foreign currencies, with or without account, to individuals and legal entities within and
outside Kyrgyzstan.
SEPTEMBER
Launching Elcard national payment card
Kompanion Bank launched Elcard, a card of the national payment system of the Kyrgyz Republic.
Elcard is an approachable, reliable and safe banking product designed for making cash-free payments,
receiving salaries, pensions and benefits, making payments for various public services, paying taxes,
customs duties, insurance premiums and other payments.
OCTOBER
Cooperation with Russian-Kyrgyz Development Fund
On October 4, Kompanion Bank entered into a credit line agreement with the Russian-Kyrgyz
Development Fund for financing of small and medium businesses. Through this cooperation,
entrepreneurs now have access to medium and long-term financing at below market interest rate for
investment in industrials sectors including clothing and textiles, transport, mining and metallurgy, as
well as tourism, medicine, trade and education infrastructures.
DECEMBER
Joining KyrSEFF+ Program
On December 19, Kompanion Bank joined EBRD’s Kyrgyz Sustainable Energy Financing Facility
(KyrSEFF+). Under the program, the Bank will provide loans to projects related to energy efficiency,
resource conservation and renewable energy sources in residential houses and commercial
organizations. Not only are the Bank’s clients offered an opportunity to receive financing, but
they may also receive free-of-charge technical assistance with advice on optimization of power
consumption and selection of appropriate equipment.
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2016 YEAR

AGRONOMISTS AND

VETERINARIANS

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
Kompanion is the only Bank in Kyrgyzstan that has a technical assistance department.
Consisting of 32 highly qualified agronomists and livestock specialists, Kompanion’s unique
integrated approach provides a blend of financial products and business development
services, helping clients to increase their crop and livestock productivity using an ethnoecological approach to the management of natural resources and business assets. In 2016
more than 12,300 active clients received free consultations on developing their agricultural
businesses.
SMART INVESTMENTS
To strengthen the integration of financial products and business development, the development
team has created and implemented the “smart investments” concept, which provides advice
on clear and concise investment business ideas followed by descriptive technical materials
that reflect the backbone of the idea and provide basic calculations of return on investment.
Such business ideas illustrate to clients’ the possible economic benefits from investment in
agricultural business. Not only does the Kompanion client receive financing, but the loan is
supported with information on how to use cost-effective agricultural practices, how to improve
production and marketing and business methods that require a minimum contribution of
human and financial capital. The result is increased earnings, greater crop yields, production
scale-up and increased food security. This allows clients to develop their businesses and
reduce the influence of unfavorable events on their households.
MARKET PRICE MONITORING SYSTEM
Since 2012, the market price monitoring system has allowed Kompanion to track prices for a
basket of agricultural products (livestock, seeds, meat, vegetables and fruit) in large markets
throughout the country on a monthly basis. Based on this information Kompanion’s clients
can make more profitable decisions with regard to sales of their products in various regions.
Market prices are analyzed and distributed to clients in all of Kompanion’s offices.

8

INITIATIVE TRAININGS

HOUSEHOLDS

VILLAGES
DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES FOR COMMUNITIES
The development team at Kompanion Bank allows vulnerable communities in remote regions
of the country to complete an annual training in two topics: Ecogarden (agronomy) and
Livestock Management (animal husbandry). Specialists from Kompanion help households
manage their business assets (household plots, livestock) and natural resources such as
summer and winter pastures and water resources). By applying this knowledge and acquired
skills, households can improve their crop quality and increase livestock yields, leading to
increases in their household income. The Bank’s agronomists and veterinarians conducted
14, 800 initiative training sessions over the past six years attended by 35, 300 households
from 850 villages across Kyrgyzstan.
EVENTS FOR COMMUNITIES
Training development initiatives are also accompanied by annual mobilization events in the
rural areas. Kompanion Bank conducts local agricultural fairs, Ayil Alga development festivals
and the annual Kompanion Apple Festival. These gatherings allow producers and buyers of
agricultural products to connect, while representatives of biolaboratories, nurseries, owners
of pedigree cattle and processors are able to join an open platform to conclude mutually
beneficial contracts and establish direct market connections. The main goal of these events
is to foster development of agriculture and market contacts for strengthening the economic
capacity of communities.
IMPACT MEASUREMENT SYSTEM
Kompanion’s Impact Measurement System (IMS) is an integrated system of indicators that
allows measuring and evaluating the impact of financial and development services upon
households and clients’ businesses, as well as tracking and understanding the influence
of activities on households’ selfsustainability and promotion of financial integration. IMS
was developed by Kompanion and is a unique data management tool. The system allows
automated collection of data using mobile devices, storage of data in a centralized database
and data analysis by means of various analytical and statistical methods. Based on collected
IMS data, Kompanion’s financial and development services have a favourable impact upon
rural communities.
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Livestock - a profitable investment!
BORU VILLAGE, OSH OBLAST

Alaychiyeva Mastura successfully runs her business
with the help of her husband and son. A retiree,
Mastura is the mother of three sons. The youngest
son has a family and lives with his parents and also
helps a lot in the household.
Mansura first heard about Kompanion in 2005.
She persuaded her neighbors to create a group
and take out a loan, which they used to buy calves,
and successfully repaid a year later. Over the next seven
years, Mastura took loans from Kompanion for the purchase
of livestock. Simultaneously, she participated in training sessions on financial literacy
and livestock management. After 11 years, she has increased her livestock to 14 head
by applying this knowledge. She associates her success with observance of discipline,
as well as strict accounting of income and expenses.
I would very much like to wish entrepreneurs who plan to start their own
business to start with small amounts, and be guided
by a clear calculation of the distribution of
finances. And the most important rule is to
use the loan for its purpose.
In the near future, the family also plans
to take out a loan for further expansion of
their business. Mastura and her husband are
gradually realizing their dream - to create a
full-fledged farm with all the conditions for
raising livestock.
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A vivid example of a confident start-up business for women!
KARAKOL, ISSYK-KUL OBLAST
A resident of the city of Karakol, Ms. Kipekova
Gulnur has higher education in the fields of
accounting and audit, as well as secondary
level medical education. Before starting her
business, she worked as a nurse, and also
gained experience in the production of bakery
products. Gulnur was looking for her calling, so
she tried her hand at various endeavors. One of
her partners, Estebesova Aizada worked in trade
and catering before starting her own business.
In 2015, the women decided to take a group loan and
jointly started a business in the livestock sector (fattening cattle). Having successfully
implemented this project, they repaid the loan ahead of schedule. In 2016, the
successful entrepreneurs received a second loan, and adding the profits from the first
, together with their own funds, launched a dairy cattle breeding project. They started
with the purchase of dairy cows of and heifers of the Schwick and Holstein-Frisian
breeds. Currently, the entrepreneurs have nine cows. They plan to expand their herd
of dairy cows as well as construct a cowshed and also purchase land to grow fodder.
Working with Kompanion Bank, we got an
opportunity to open our own business. We
constantly participate in festivals and
exhibitions organized by Kompanion,
and actively use the calculations that
have already been made by the Bank’s
specialists. We are constantly consulting
with the Kompanion’s veterinarians. We
know firsthand how difficult it is to start
your own business. Therefore, I very much
want to wish future entrepreneurs the
strength and patience!
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Love of your work is the main secret of success!
TOKTOGUL, JALAL-ABAD OBLAST
Ms. Mangieva Sirgazhan is a successful client of our Bank. She began working
with Kompanion in 2007. By that time, Sirgazhan already had a business.
trading vegetables and fruit in the marke. But she had a dream- to develop her own
business and build her own container for selling products. Having consulted with her
colleagues in the market, they decided to create a group together and took a loan from
Kompanion. The result was a solid container, which is convenient and comfortable to
trade in the market.
Before I worked with Kompanion, I did not take
loans anywhere. When I needed money, I took
money from money lenders at very high
interest rates. Now I work with Kompanion
Bank, and I never regretted my decision.
Sirgazhan is planning to build another
container, where her spouse will sell his fruits
and vegetable.
I relate my success in business with
my diligence. It is very important to love
the work that you are doing. And then
everything will be achieved!
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An example of successful pharmaceutical business in a village!
SOKULUK, CHUI OBLAST
Gulnara Sarymbetova is the owner of two pharmacies in Sokuluk, approximately 25
km from the capital Bishkek. The business was started in the late 90’s when Gulnara
bought a two-room apartment in the center of the village of Sokuluk and converted it
into a pharmacy. She worked day and night, but because the amount of goods she sold
was small, the profit was very small as well. In 2007, she received a loan with a group,
and she used it to buy a batch of pharmaceuticals and increased the variety of goods
she had on offer. Very soon turnover increased with an oncrease in her profit. She
soon attached a large room to the pharmacy and began renting out the premises for
meetings and other gatherings. After some time the entrepreneur took another loan
and bought a container, and converted it to a pharmacy in the neighboring village.
Thus, through a responsible distribution of funds and the right investments, Gulnara
could increase her turnover by more than tenfold.
When I took the first loan, I felt a little worried.
I felt responsible not only for myself, but
for all of the members of the group, but
now I understand that if you use loan
funds for their intended purpose,
and properly and rationally use
the income, then the business will
thrive and profits will increase.
For example, I distribute profits in
the following way: I divide a day’s
earnings into parts and spread
them out in different envelopes.
In the first envelope are funds for
repaying the loan, in the second
envelope I put, as they say, money for a
“black day.” Whatever is remaining goes to
business development and daily needs. This way I have no problem repaying
the loan, and bank employees often praise me for exemplary on time payment.
I would like to give advice for entrepreneurs never to give up. The banking
services will only benefit if they are used wisely.
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED
JOINT STOCK COMPANY
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Consolidated financial statements

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION
AND APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kompanion Bank Closed Joint Stock Company
(formerly Kompanion Financial Group Microfinance Closed Joint Stock Company) and its subsidiaries
(«the Group») as at 31 December 2016, and the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in
equity for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards («IFRS»).
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for:
• properly selecting and applying accounting policies;
• presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;
• providing additional disclosures when compliance with IFRS requirements are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group’s
consolidated financial position and financial performance; and
• making an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Management is also responsible for:
• designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls,
throughout the Group;
• maintaining accounting records that are sufficient to disclose and explain the Group’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the consolidated financial position of the Group,
and which enable them to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group comply
with IFRS requirements;
• maintaining accounting records in compliance with the legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic;
• taking such steps that are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Group; and
• preventing and detecting financial and other irregularities.
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 were approved
by the Group’s management on 13 March 2017.

On behalf of the Management:

Ulanbek Termechikov
Chairman of the Management
Board
13 March 2017
Bishkek
the Kyrgyz Republic
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Gulbara Djakypbaeva
Chief accountant

KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Consolidated financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Kompanion Bank CJSC
Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kompanion Bank CJSC and its subsidiaries
(the “Group)”, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit and loss and of other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
Other information included in the Group’s Annual report for 2016
Other information consists of the information included in the Annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other
information.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have not read the
Group’s Annual report for 2016 because it was available as of the date of our audit opinion.
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Consolidated financial statements

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
BakhtiyorEshonkulov.

__________________________
Bakhtiyor Eshonkulov
Audit partner

___________________________
Elizaveta Tsoy
Auditor / General Director
Ernst & Young Audit LLC

A Qualification Certificate of the auditor series
A No. 003 registration No. 00098 dated 28
February 2006

License to perform audit activities series
А № 0036 registration No. 0065 dated
20 February 2010 issued by The State
Service for Financial Market Regulation
and Supervision under the Government of
Kyrgyz Republic

Address: Abdrakhmanov Str., 191
Bishkek 720011, Kyrgyz Republic
13 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
AND OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2016
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Interest income
Interest expenses
Net interest income before allowance for
impairment on interest bearing assets
Allowance for impairment on interest bearing assets
Net interest income
Net loss from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Net foreign exchange gain
Reversal of allowance for impairment of other assets
Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expenses
Net other income
Net non-interest expenses
Operating income
Operating expenses
Profit before taxation
Income tax expense
Net profit
Attributable to:
- shareholders of the Bank
- non-controlling interest
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Attributable to:
- shareholders of the Bank
- non-controlling interest

Notes
7, 27
7
8
9

27
10
11

Year ended
31 December
2016
1,571,838
(600,754)

Year ended
31 December
2015
1,671,875
(493,863)

971,084
(18,064)
953,020
(165,661)
(5,996)
5,553
7,338
(639)
16,008
(143,397)
809,623
(799,438)
10,185
8,272
18,457

1,178,012
(87,706)
1,090,306
(298,774)
26,684
−
−
(5,183)
16,433
(260,840)
829,466
(786,026)
43,440
(7,659)
35,781

18,457
−
18,457
−
18,457

35,781
−
35,781
−
35,781

18,457
−
18,457

35,781
−
35,781

On behalf of the Management:

Ulanbek Termechikov
Chairman of the Management Board
13 March 2017
Bishkek
the Kyrgyz Republic
Notes on pages 25 to 65 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Gulbara Djakypbaeva
Chief accountant

KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of 31 December 2016
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

31 December
2016

31 December
2015*

924,353
343,520
454,150
68,345
4,578,684
340,955
46,879
4,707
4,532
25,542
6,791,667

1,298,395
19,261
−
443,700
4,101,038
292,499
50,201
8,884
−
51,219
6,265,197

23
20
22
11
21

916,231
4,236,094
57,278
−
233,138
5,442,741

−
4,584,664
62,796
11,359
275,909
4,934,728

25

1,000,616
177,150
171,158
1,348,924
2
1,348,926
6,791,667

1,000,616
177,150
152,701
1,330,467
2
1,330,469
6,265,197

Notes

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions
Investment securities
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to customers
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred income tax assets
Current income tax assets
Other assets
Total assets

12
13
15
18
14
16
17
11
19

Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Customer accounts
Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Current income tax liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings
Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent
Non-controlling interest
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

* Certain numbers shown here do not correspond to the 2015 consolidated financial statements and reflect reclassifications made as detailed in Note 6.

On behalf of the Management:

Ulanbek Termechikov
Chairman of the Management Board

Gulbara Djakypbaeva
Chief accountant

13 March 2017
Bishkek
the Kyrgyz Republic
Notes on pages 25 to 65 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2016
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

31 December 2014
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for
the year
Total comprehensive income
Dividends declared (Note 24)
Issue of common shares (Note 24)
31 December 2015
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year
Total comprehensive income
31 December 2016

Share
capital
650,400

Share
premium
−

Retained
earnings
124,044

Noncontrolling
interest
2

Total
equity
774,446

−

−

35,781

−

35,781

−
−

−
−

−
35,781

−
−

−
35,781

−
350,216
1,000,616

−
177,150
177,150

(7,124)
−
152,701

−
−
2

(7,124)
527,366
1,330,469

−

−

18,457

−

18,457

−
−
1,000,616

−
−
177,150

−
18,457
171,158

−
−
2

−
18,457
1,348,926

On behalf of the Management:

Ulanbek Termechikov
Chairman of the Management
Board
13 March 2017

Gulbara Djakypbaeva
Chief accountant

Bishkek
the Kyrgyz Republic

Notes on pages 25 to 65 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2016
(in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received
Interest paid
Fees and commissions received
Fees and commissions paid
Other operating income
Operating expenses
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities
Net (increase)/decrease in operating assets
Amounts due from credit institutions
Loans to customers
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Other assets
Net increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
Amounts due to customers
Other liabilities
Net cash flows from operating activities before income tax
Income tax paid
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities
Repayment of investment securities
Purchase of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets
Inflow from sale of property and equipment
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities

Notes

Year ended
31 December
2016

Year ended
31 December
2015

1,536,530
(613,232)
7,338
(639)
1,322
(934,810)

1,667,990
(490,035)
−
(5,164)
16,432
(992,444)

(3,491)

196,779

(359,971)
(476,831)
199,249
9,893

1,080
304,884
680,031
6,868

910,736
10,938
290,523
(3,441)
287,082

−
8,676
1,198,318
(8,000)
1,190,318

116,000
(562,885)
(74,049)
540
(520,394)

−
−
(65,887)
−
(65,887)

Notes on pages 25 to 65 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Cash flows from financing activities
Inflow from banks and other financial institutions
Repayment of due to banks and other financial institutions
Proceeds from increase in capital
Dividends payable
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities

Notes

Effect of exchange rates changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
Cash and cash equivalents, ending

12
12

Year ended
31 December
2016

Year ended
31 December
2015

2,682,618
(2,767,674)
−
−
(85,056)

649,714
(1,770,194)
527,366
(7,124)
(600,238)

(55,674)
(374,042)

147,352
671,545

1,298,395
924,353

626,850
1,298,395

On behalf of the Management:

Ulanbek Termechikov
Chairman of the Management Board
13 March 2017
Bishkek
the Kyrgyz Republic

Notes on pages 25 to 65 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Gulbara Djakypbaeva
Chief accountant

KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

1. Organisation
Kompanion Bank Closed Joint Stock Company (“the Bank”) was established in accordance with the
legislation of Kyrgyz Republic in 2004. On 9 April 2009, the Bank was reorganized into a Closed Joint
Stock Company. On 29 April 2009, the Bank was re-registered in the Ministry of Justice of the Kyrgyz
Republic in accordance with certificate No. 21732-3300-AO. On 25 November 2011, the Bank was reregistered in the Ministry of Justice of the Kyrgyz Republic in accordance with certificate No. 217323300-ЗAO. On 26 August 2013, the Bank was re-registered in the Ministry of Justice of the Kyrgyz
Republic in accordance with certificate No. 21732-3300-ЗAO. On 20 November 2015, the Bank was reregistered with the Ministry of Justice of the Kyrgyz Republic in accordance with certificate No. 217323300-ЗAO. On 11 January 2016, the National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic issued License No. 053 for
the right to conduct banking operations in national currency and the License No. 053/1 for the right to
conduct banking operations in foreign currency.
The Bank accepts deposits from the public, provides loans and transfers money in the territory of the
Kyrgyz Republic and abroad, conducts currency exchange transactions, and provides other banking
services to legal entities and individuals that are clients of the Bank.
Starting from 16 January 2016, the Bank is a participant in the system of mandatory protection of
deposits. This system operates on the basis of the legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic, and its management
is carried out by the State Agency “Deposit Protection Agency of the Kyrgyz Republic”. The deposit
protection system is aimed at protecting depositors of banks (individuals and individual entrepreneurs
carrying out individual entrepreneurial activities without the formation of a legal entity) upon the
occurrence of a guarantee event (failure to pay a deposit due enforcement of a final court decision
on forced liquidation or bankruptcy of a bank, and if the procedure for voluntary liquidation initiated
in accordance with the legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic has been transferred to the procedure of
compulsory liquidation on the grounds provided by the Law of the Kyrgyz Republic On the Conservation,
Liquidation and Bankruptcy of Banks in accordance with the final court decision that came into force) by
providing compensation in the amount up to KGS 200 thousand for each individual.
The Bank is registered and located at 62, Shota Rustaveli St., Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic.
The Bank’s operations are managed by the head office located in the city of Bishkek. As of 31 December
2016 and 2015 in the territory of the Kyrgyz Republic, the Group had 16 and 15 branches, respectively.
The shareholder of the Bank and its ultimate controlling party is an international non-governmental
organisation Mercy Corps (“the Founder”) with headquarters in Portland, Oregon, USA and Edinburgh,
Scotland.
As at 31 December 2016, the following shareholders owned more than 5% of the outstanding shares:
Shareholder
Mercy Corps
Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij voor Ontwikkeungslanden N.V. (FMO)
Triodos Sicav II − Triodos Microfinance Fund
Triodos Custody B.V.
Total

2016, %
65.0
17.5
8.75
8.75
100.0

2015, %
65.0
17.5
8.75
8.75
100.0
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2. Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on the assumption that the Group
will continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Kyrgyz Som (KGS), unless
otherwise indicated.
These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a historical cost basis
except for certain financial instruments that are carried at fair value as explained below.
The Group maintains accounting in compliance with the legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic that was
modified to enhance consistency with IFRS requirements.
The Group presents the consolidated statement of financial position as a whole in the order of liquidity.
The breakdown of financial assets and financial liabilities for reimbursement or redemption within 12
months after the date of the statement of financial position (short-term) and for more than 12 months
after the date of the statement of financial position (long-term) is disclosed in Note 29.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as trading and available for sale, derivative instruments
and non-financial assets as investment property at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair values of
financial instruments measured at amortised cost are disclosed in Note 27.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
• in the principal market for the asset or liability; or
• in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
• Level 1 − quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
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• Level 2 − valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable;
• Level 3 − valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
In the event of assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a regular
basis, the Group determines the fact of transfer between levels of hierarchy sources by analysing the
classification once again (based on initial data of the lowest level that are significant for fair value
evaluation in whole) at the end of each reporting period.
Functional currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The presentational currency of the Group is also Kyrgyz Som (“KGS”) as well as the currency of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand soms,
unless otherwise specified.
Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expense is not offset in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically
disclosed in the accounting policies of the Group.
Consolidation principles
Subsidiaries, which are those entities which are controlled by the Group, are consolidated. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the
Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:
• power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee);
• exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee;
• the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:
• the contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee;
• rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
• the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are no
longer consolidated from the date that control ceases. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated in full; unrealised losses
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are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Where necessary, accounting policies for subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. Losses are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that results in a deficit
balance.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary, the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests, the cumulative translation
differences, recorded in equity; recognises the fair value of the consideration received, the fair value of
any investment retained and any surplus or deficit in profit or loss and reclassifies the parent’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income to profit or loss.
Non-controlling interest
Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries not
owned, directly or indirectly, by the Group.
Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position,
separately from parent shareholders equity.
Recognition of interest income and expense
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest bearing financial instruments
classified as trading and available-for-sale instruments, interest income or expense is recorded at
the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation takes into account
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any
fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, but not future credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability is adjusted if the Group revises its estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying
amount is calculated based on the original effective interest rate and the change in carrying amount is
recorded as interest income or expense.
Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due
to an impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognised using the original effective interest
rate applied to the new carrying amount.
Recognition of fee and commission income and expense
The Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers.
Fee income can be divided into the following two categories:
Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time
Fee and commission income obtained for rendering the services during a certain period of time are
accrued during this period. These fees include commission income and asset management, custody and
other management and advisory fees. Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down
and other credit related fees are deferred (together with any incremental costs) and recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate on the loan.
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Commission income from providing transaction services
Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party −
such as the arrangement of the acquisition of shares or other securities or the purchase or sale of
businesses − are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction. Fees or components of fees
that are linked to a certain performance are recognised after fulfilling the corresponding criteria.
Financial instruments
The Group recognises financial assets and liabilities in its consolidated statement of financial position
when it becomes a party to the contractual obligations of the instrument. Regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets and liabilities are recognised using settlement date accounting.
Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
Financial assets
Initial recognition
Financial assets in the scope of IAS 39 are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets upon initial recognition, and
subsequently can reclassify financial assets in certain cases as described below.
Date of recognition
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date
that the Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss”. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated and effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on financial assets held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss.
Held-to-maturity investments
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified
as held-to-maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity.
Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification. Held-tomaturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the investments are impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.
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Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term
resale and are not classified as trading securities or designated as investment securities available-forsale. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. After initial recognition
available-for sale financial assets are measured at fair value with gains or losses being recognised in
other comprehensive income until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is determined
to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. However, interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.
Reclassification of financial assets
If a non-derivative financial asset classified as held for trading is no longer held for the purpose of
selling in the near term, it may be reclassified out of the fair value through profit or loss category in one
of the following cases:
• a financial asset that would have met the definition of loans and receivables above may be reclassified
to loans and receivables category if the Group has the intention and ability to hold it for the foreseeable
future or until maturity;
• other financial assets may be reclassified to available for sale or held to maturity categories only in
rare circumstances.
A financial asset classified as available for sale that would have met the definition of loans and receivables
may be reclassified to loans and receivables category of the Group has the intention and ability to hold
it for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
Financial assets are reclassified at their fair value on the date of reclassification. Any gain or loss
already recognized in profit or loss is not reversed. The fair value of the financial asset on the date of
reclassification becomes its new cost or amortised cost, as applicable.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, unrestricted balances on correspondent and deposit
accounts and amounts due from banks with original maturities within three months, which may be
converted to cash within a short period of time and thus are considered liquid. Unrestricted balances on
correspondent and deposit accounts and amounts due from banks with original maturities within three
months are recorded within “Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions”.
Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending
Sale and repurchase agreements (“repos”) are treated as secured financing transactions. Securities sold
under sale and repurchase agreements are retained in the consolidated statement of financial position
and, in case the transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge them, reclassified
as securities pledged under sale and repurchase agreements. The corresponding liability is presented
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within amounts due to credit institutions or customers. Securities purchased under agreements to
resell (“reverse repo”) are recorded as amounts due from credit institutions or loans to customers
as appropriate. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as interest income and
accrued over the life of repo agreements using the effective interest method.
Securities lent to counterparties are retained in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Securities borrowed are not recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, unless these
are sold to third parties, in which case the purchase and sale are recorded within gains less losses
from trading securities in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The obligation to return them is
recorded at fair value as a trading liability.
Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions
Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions and other receivables that have fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an organised market are classified as “loans and
receivables”. Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions and other receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.
For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:
• significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
• breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
• default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
• it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or
• absence of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.
The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
For certain categories of financial assets, such as loans and receivables, assets that are assessed not
to be impaired individually are assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of decrease in value of loans to customers could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in delayed payments in the portfolio, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on payments.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are
estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to those in the Group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the years on which the historical loss
experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist
currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are directionally consistent with, changes
in related observable data from year to year (such as changes in unemployment rates, property prices,
commodity prices, payment status, or other factors that are indicative of incurred losses by the Group or
their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of loans and receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When a loan or a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Changes in the amount of the allowance account are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income to the extent that the carrying amount of
the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Write-off of loans issued and receivables
Loans and receivables are written off against the allowance account when deemed uncollectible. Loans
and receivables are written off after management has exercised all possibilities available to collect
amounts due to the Group and after the Group has sold all available collateral. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are reflected as an offset to the charge for impairment of financial
assets in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period of
recovery.
Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognise a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
On derecognition of a financial asset other than it is entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to
repurchase part of the transferred asset or retains a residual interest that does not result in the retention
of substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group retains control), the Group allocates
the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
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continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the
part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that
is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including due to banks and other financial institutions, and other liabilities, are
initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
Derivative financial instruments
In the normal course of business, the Group enters into various derivative financial instruments including
swaps and secured loans. The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage
its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk, including interest rate currency swaps and
currency swaps. Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 15. Derivatives
are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured to their fair value at each reporting date. The fair values are estimated based on quoted
market prices or pricing models that take into account the current market and contractual prices of
the underlying instruments and other factors. Derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value
is positive and as liabilities when it is negative. Derivatives are included in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in the consolidated statement of financial position. Gains and losses resulting
from these instruments are included in net loss from derivative financial instruments in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, except for foreign currency revaluation which is
included in net foreign exchange gain.
Finance − Group as lessee
The Group recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the date of commencement of the lease term at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. In calculating the present
value of the minimum lease payments the discount factor used is the interest rate implicit in the lease,
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when it is practicable to determine; otherwise, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate is used. Initial
direct costs incurred are included as part of the asset. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to periods
during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.
The costs identified as directly attributable to activities performed by the lessee for a finance lease, are
included as part of the amount recognised as an asset under the lease.
Finance − Bank Group as lessor
The Group recognises lease receivables at value equal to the net investment in the lease, starting
from the date of commencement of the lease term. Finance income is based on a pattern reflecting a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding. Initial direct costs are included in
the initial measurement of the lease receivables.
Operating − Group as lessee
Leases of assets under which the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as expenses
on a straight-line basis over the lease term and included into other operating expenses.
Operating − Bank Group as lessor
The Group presents assets subject to operating leases in the consolidated statement of financial position
according to the nature of the asset. Lease income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The aggregate cost of incentives provided to lessees is
recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Initial direct
costs incurred specifically to earn revenues from an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset.
Loans to customers
Loans to customers represent non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market, except for assets that are classified into other categories of financial
instruments.
Loans to customers granted by the Group are initially recognised at fair value plus related transaction
costs. Where the fair value of consideration given does not equal the fair value of the loan, for example
where the loan is issued at lower than market rates, the difference between the fair value of consideration
given and the fair value of the loan is recognised as a loss on initial recognition of the loan and included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income according to nature
of the losses. Subsequently loans are recognized at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Loans to customers are carried net of any allowance for impairment.
Property and equipment and intangible assets
Property and equipment and intangible assets are recognised at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortisation. Depreciation on assets under construction and those not placed in service commences
from the date the assets are ready for their intended use.

34

KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

Depreciation is charged on the carrying value of property and equipment and intangible assets, and is
designed to write off assets over their useful economic lives. Depreciation is charged on a straight line
basis at the following annual prescribed rates:
Buildings
Transportation
Furniture and office equipment
Computers hardware
Intangible assets

Depreciation rate
2%
10-17%
20%
33.3%
10-33.3%

Capital expenditures for leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of the life of the
related leased asset or the lease term. Expenses related to repairs and renewals are charged when
incurred and included in operating expenses unless they qualify for capitalisation.
The carrying amounts of property and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount
is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amount. After the recognition of an
impairment loss the depreciation charge for property and equipment is adjusted in future periods to
allocate the assets’ revised carrying value, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its
remaining useful life.
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. The current
income tax expense is calculated in accordance with the legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic.
Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other reporting periods and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates and tax legislation that
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have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, except when they relate to items that are recognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
Operating taxes
The Group performs its activities in the Kyrgyz Republic, and it is required to accrue and pay different taxes,
other than income tax, that are applied to the Bank’s activities. These taxes are included as a component
of operating expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions and subordinated debt
Due to banks and other financial institutions and subordinated debt are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequently, amounts due are stated at amortised cost and any difference between net proceeds
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings, using the effective interest method.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position but are
disclosed unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote. A contingent asset is not
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position but disclosed when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.
Foreign currency
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences on monetary items due to changes in foreign exchange rates are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.
The exchange rates used by the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements as at
year-end are as follows:
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KGS/USD
KGS/euro

31 December
2016
69.2301
72.8439

31 December
2015
75.8993
83.0073

Share capital
Share capital is accounted at historical cost.
Dividends are recognised in equity as a reduction in the period in which they are declared. Dividends
that are declared after the reporting date are treated as a subsequent event in accordance with IAS 10
Subsequent Events and are appropriately disclosed.
Retirement obligations
In accordance with the requirements of the Kyrgyz legislation certain percentages of pension payments
are withheld from total disbursements to staff to be transferred to state pension fund. Such pension
system provides for the calculation of current payments by the employer as a percentage of current
total payments to staff. Such costs are recognized in the period the related salaries are earned. Upon
retirement, all retirement benefit payments are made by the state pension fund. The Group also has
pension arrangement that provides for defined amount to be paid each year to the special fund. Upon
retirement eligible employees would receive pension benefits from this fund in accordance with the
amount accumulated in this fund.

4. Significant assumptions and sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant in the circumstances. Actual outcomes
could differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
periods, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
Significant assumptions used in applying accounting policies
The following are significant assumptions apart from those involving estimations, that the Group
management has made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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Fair value of financial instruments
Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The input to these models is taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. More details are provided in Note 27.
Impairment of loans and receivables
The Group regularly reviews its loans and receivables to assess impairment. Allowance for loan impairment
is established by the Group to recognise losses from impairment in loan portfolio and receivables. The
Group considers accounting estimates related to allowance for impairment of loans and receivables as
the key source of estimation uncertainty since (a) they are highly susceptible to change from period
to period as the assumptions about future default rates and valuation of potential losses relating to
impaired loans and receivables are based on recent performance experience, and (b) any significant
difference between the Group’s estimated losses and actual losses would require the Group to record
provisions which could have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements in future periods.
The Group uses management’s judgement to estimate the amount of any impairment loss in cases
where a borrower has financial difficulties and there are few available sources of historical data
relating to similar borrowers. Similarly, the Group estimates changes in future cash flows based on past
performance, past customer behaviour, observable data indicating an adverse change in the payment
status of borrowers in the Group, and national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on assets on the Group. Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the group of
loans. The Bank uses management’s judgement to adjust observable data for a group of loans to reflect
current circumstances not reflected in historical data.
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, total value of loans to customers amounted to KGS 4,892,151 thousand
and KGS 4,397,836 thousand, respectively, and the amount of allowance for impairment amounted to
KGS 313,467 thousand and KGS 296,798 thousand, respectively.

5. Application of new and revised international financial reporting standards
Changes in accounting policies
The Group applied the following IFRS amendments, which became effective for annual periods on or
after 1 January 2016:
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
The amendments to IAS 1 clarify, rather than significantly change, existing IAS 1 requirements. The
amendments clarify:
• The materiality requirements in IAS 1.
• That specific line items in the statement(s) of profit or loss and OCI and the statement of financial
position may be disaggregated.
• That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial statements.
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• That the share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must
be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between those items that will or will
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when additional subtotals are
presented in the statement of financial position and the statement(s) of profit or loss and OCI. These
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. These amendments
do not have any impact on the Group
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
The amendments address issues that have arisen in applying the investment entities exception under
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. The amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that the exemption
from presenting consolidated financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an
investment entity, when the investment entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value.
Furthermore, the amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that only a subsidiary of an investment entity that is not
an investment entity itself and that provides support services to the investment entity is consolidated.
All other subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured at fair value. The amendments to IAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures allow the investor, when applying the equity method, to
retain the fair value measurement applied by the investment entity associate or joint venture to its
interests in subsidiaries.
These amendments must be applied retrospectively and are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016. These amendments do not have any impact on the Group as the Group does
not apply the consolidation exception.
Annual improvements 2012-2014 cycle
These improvements are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. They include,
in particular:
IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Assets (or disposal groups) are generally disposed of either through sale or distribution to owners.
The amendment clarifies that changing from one of these disposal methods to the other would not be
considered a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore,
no interruption of the application of the requirements in IFRS 5. This amendment must be applied
prospectively.
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing
involvement in a financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and the arrangement
against the guidance for continuing involvement in IFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures
are required. The assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement must be
done retrospectively. However, the required disclosures would not need to be provided for any period
beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the amendments.
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Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are listed below. The Group intends to adopt those standards when
they become effective.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which reflects all phases of
the financial instruments project and replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
as well as all previous version of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements to classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.
From a classification and measurement perspective, the new standard will require all financial assets,
except equity instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of the entity’s business
model for managing the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics. The IAS 39
measurement categories will be replaced by: fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI), and amortised cost categories. IFRS 9 will also allow entities to
continue to irrevocably designate instruments that qualify for amortised cost or FVOCI instruments as
FVPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency. Equity
instruments that are not held for trading may be irrevocably designated as FVOCI, with no subsequent
reclassification of gains or losses to the income statement. The accounting for financial liabilities will
largely be the same as the requirements of IAS 39.
IFRS 9 will also fundamentally change the approach to loan impairment. The standard will replace IAS
39’s incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. The Bank will
be required to record an allowance for expected losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not
carried at FVPL, as well as for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The allowance is
based on the expected credit losses associated with the probability of default in the next twelve months
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case the allowance
would be based on the probability of default over the life of the asset.
IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application
permitted. Retrospective application is required, but restatement of comparative information is not
required; the effect on the transition date − 1 January 2018 − would be recorded in retained earnings.
The adoption of IFRS 9 is expected to have an effect on the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets, but no impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
liabilities. The Group expects a significant impact on its equity due to adoption of IFRS 9 impairment
requirements, but it will need to perform a more detailed analysis which considers all reasonable and
supportable information, including forward-looking elements to determine the extent of the impact.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 published in May 2014 establishes a new five-step model of accounting for revenue from
contracts with customers. Recognition of revenue arising from lease contracts within the scope of IAS 17
Leases and insurance contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and revenue arising in
connection with financial instruments and other contractual rights and obligations within the scope
of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (or IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, if early
adopted) is not within the scope of application of IFRS 15 and regulated by the respective standards.
Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognised at the amount of consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide
a more structured approach to measuring and recognising revenue.
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The new standard is applicable to all entities and supersedes all current revenue recognition requirements
under IFRS. This standard is applied retrospectively either in full or using the simplifications of practical
nature for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early application is permitted. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required
effective date.
IFRS 16 Leases
The IASB issued the new standard for accounting for leases − IFRS 16 Leases in January 2016. The new
standard does not significantly change the accounting for leases for lessors. However, it does require
lessees to recognise most leases on their balance sheets as lease liabilities, with the corresponding right
of-use assets. Lessees must apply a single model for all recognised leases, but will have the option not
to recognise ‘short-term’ leases and leases of ‘low-value’ assets. Generally, the profit or loss recognition
pattern for recognised leases will be similar to today’s finance lease accounting, with interest and
depreciation expense recognised separately in the statement of profit or loss.
IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted
provided the new revenue standard, IFRS 15, is applied on the same date.
The Group does not anticipate early adopting IFRS 16 and is currently evaluating its impact.
Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes
In January 2016, through issuing amendments to IAS 12, the IASB clarified the accounting treatment
of deferred tax assets of debt instruments measured at fair value for accounting, but measured at cost
for tax purposes. The Group does not anticipate that adopting the amendments would have a material
impact on its financial statements.
Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
In January 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows with the intention to
improve disclosures of financing activities and help users to better understand the reporting entities’
liquidity positions. Under the new requirements, entities will need to disclose changes in their financial
liabilities as a result of financing activities such as changes from cash flows and non-cash items (e.g.,
gains and losses due to foreign currency movements). The amendment is effective from 1 January 2017.
The Group is currently evaluating the impact.
Amendments to IFRS 2
The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment in relation to the classification and
measurement of share-based payment transactions. The amendments are intended to eliminate diversity
in practice, but are narrow in scope and address specific areas of classification and measurement. The
amendments address three main areas:
• The effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction.
• The classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding
tax obligations.
• The accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-settled.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. On adoption,
entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but retrospective
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application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and other criteria are met. Early application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group.
Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts − Amendments to IFRS 4
The amendments address concerns arising from implementing the new financial instruments Standard,
IFRS 9, before implementing the new insurance contracts standard that the Board is developing to replace
IFRS 4. The amendments introduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary
exemption from applying IFRS 9 and an overlay approach. The optional temporary exemption from IFRS
9 is available to entities whose activities are predominantly connected with insurance. The temporary
exemption permits such entities to continue to apply IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement while they defer the application of IFRS 9 until 1 January 2021 at the latest. The overlay
approach requires an entity to remove from profit or loss additional volatility that may arise if IFRS 9 is
applied with IFRS 4.
The temporary exemption is first applied for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. An
entity may elect the overlay approach when it first applies IFRS 9 and apply that approach retrospectively
to financial assets designated on transition to IFRS 9. The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the Group.

6. Reclassifications
In the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2015 and for the year then ended, certain
reclassifications were made to bring it into line with the presentation as at 31 December 2016 and for
the year then ended, since the current year presentation provides more fair presentation of the Group’s
financial position.

Statement of financial position
Property and equipment and intangible assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Total assets

Note
[1]

Per report as
of 31 December
2015
342,700
−
−
6,265,197

Adjusted
amount as
Amount of 31 December
reclassified
2015
(342,700)
292,499
50,201
−

−
292,499
50,201
6,265,197

[1] Property and equipment and intangible assets are divided into two items: “Property and equipment” and “Intangible assets”.

Management believes that there is no need to present the third consolidated statement of financial
position, since the information was sufficiently disclosed in the relevant notes.

7.

Net interest income

Interest income
Interest on loans to customers, including
Group loans (i)
Individual loans
Interest on amounts due from banks and other financial institutions
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31 December
2016

Year ended
31 December
2015

1,148,370
378,220
6,554

1,489,005
132,751
40,668
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Other interest income
Total interest income on assets at amortized cost
Interest expense
Interest expense on liabilities at amortized cost
Interest expense on due to banks and other financial institutions
Interest expense on deposits
Interest expense on subordinated loan
Total interest expense on liabilities at amortized cost
Net interest income before allowance for impairment on interestbearing assets

Year ended
31 December
2016
38,694
1,571,838

Year ended
31 December
2015
9,451
1,671,875

(572,829)
(21,446)
(6,479)
(600,754)

(487,835)
−
(6,028)
(493,863)

971,084

1,178,012

(i) A special feature of group lending is the provision of loans unsecured by a pledge to a group of individuals signing a contract of joint liability for a
loan.

8. Allowance for impairment

Allowance for impairment on interest bearing assets comprises:

31 December 2014
Allowance charge
Write-off
Recovery of allowance previously written-off
31 December 2015
Allowance charge
Write-off
Recovery of allowance previously written-off
Correcting adjustment
31 December 2016

9.

Loans
to customers
228,341
87,706
(22,614)
3,365
296,798
23,939
(9,154)
3,763
(1,879)
313,467

Amounts due
from banks and
other financial
institutions
5,875
−
−
−
5,875
(5,875)
−
−
−

Total
234,216
87,706
(22,614)
3,365
302,673
18,064
(9,154)
3,763
(1,879)
313,467

Net foreign exchange gain

Gain (loss) from foreign currency revaluation of derivative financial
instruments
Gain (loss) from revaluation of monetary assets and liabilities, except
for derivative financial instruments
Net losses from foreign currencies dealing
Total net foreign exchange gain

Year ended
31 December
2016

Year ended
31 December
2015

165,883

650,346

(175,695)
3,816
(5,996)

(618,659)
(5,003)
26,684
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10. Operating expenses

Salaries and bonuses
Contributions to Social Fund of Kyrgyz Republic
Security
Depreciation and amortisation
Operating lease
Property and equipment maintenance
Transportation costs
Professional services
Business trip and representative expenses
Office supplies
Contribution to the Deposit Protection Fund
Telecommunication, mail and courier expenses
Advertising and subscription costs
Utilities
Training of personnel
Taxes other than income tax
Charity and sponsorship
Accrued provision for litigation
Provision for pension plan
Provision for medical program
Other expenses
Total operating expenses

Year ended
31 December
2016
385,168
65,055
51,108
49,955
49,852
38,923
29,880
29,526
27,746
17,354
16,476
12,381
8,924
7,632
2,912
834
783
−
(2,648)
(15,566)
23,143
799,438

Year ended
31 December
2015
397,134
62,741
36,046
38,176
30,133
45,754
29,872
21,877
15,117
9,604
−
11,103
13,166
6,793
3,084
14,377
538
12,352
3,057
3,057
32,045
786,026

11. Income tax
The Group provides for taxes based on the tax accounts maintained and prepared in accordance with
the tax regulations in the Kyrgyz Republic, which may differ from International Financial Reporting
Standards. For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the income tax rate was 10%.
Due to the fact that some types of expenses are not taken into account for tax purposes, and additionally
due to the availability of tax-free income, the Group has certain permanent tax differences.
Deferred tax reflects the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount that is determined for tax purposes.
The temporary differences available for 31 December 2016 and 2015 are mainly attributable to various
methods of accounting for income and expenses, as well as the book value of certain assets.
Tax effect of temporary differences as at 31 December 2016 and 2015, is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets
Provision for bonuses to employees
Provision for court filings
Provision for unused vacations
Accrued operating expenses
Provision for other taxes other than income tax
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2016

Year ended
31 December
2015

7,054
6,070
2,833
1,098
−

8,346
6,070
2,381
802
1,360
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Total deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax liabilities
Property and equipment and intangible assets
Allowance for impairment on loans to customers
Total deferred income tax liabilities
Net deferred income tax assets/(liabilities)

Year ended
31 December
2016
17,055

Year ended
31 December
2015
18,959

(11,423)
(925)
(12,348)
4,707

(9,150)
(925)
(10,075)
8,884

A reconciliation of the income tax expense based on statutory rates with actual is as follows:
Year ended
31 December
2016
10,185
10%
1,019

Year ended
31 December
2015
43,440
10%
4,344

Correction of tax declarations of prior periods
Non-deductible operating expenses
Income tax expense

−
(9,291)
(8,272)

(3,595)
6,910
7,659

Current income tax (benefit)/expenses
Correction of tax declarations of prior periods
Deferred income tax (benefit)/expenses
Income tax expense

(12,449)
−
4,177
(8,272)

21,708
(3,595)
(10,454)
7,659

Year ended
31 December
2016
8,884
(4,177)
4,707

Year ended
31 December
2015
(1,570)
10,454
8,884

Year ended
31 December
2016

Year ended
31 December
2015

122,715
195,824
354
605,451
9
–
924,353

−
−
1,295,960
−
−
2,435
1,298,395

Profit before taxation
Statutory tax rate
Theoretical income tax expense at the statutory rate

Deferred income tax asset
At the beginning of the year
Deferred income tax benefit/(charge) for the year
Deferred income tax asset

12. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Cash on current accounts in banks in Kyrgyz Republic
Due from banks of the Kyrgyz Republic
Due from other financial institutions in other CIS countries
Funds in OECD countries
Placements with banks with original maturities of less than 90 days
Total cash and cash equivalents
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13. Amounts due from Banks and other financial institutions

Amounts due from the National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic, restricted in
use
Amounts due from banks in the Kyrgyz Republic, restricted in use
Amounts due from other financial institutions in other CIS countries
Total due from banks
Less provision for impairment
Total amounts due from banks and other financial institutions

Year ended
31 December
2016

Year ended
31 December
2015

343,520
−
−
343,520
−
343,520

−
999
24,137
25,136
(5,875)
19,261

As of 31 December 2016 deposits in the National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic amounting to KGS 343,520
thousand are pledged as collateral for a loan received from the NBKR.
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, due from banks and other financial institutions includes accrued
interest of KGS 157 thousand and KGS 2,770 thousand, respectively.

14. Loans to customers
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, loans to customers were presented as follows:

Group loans
Individual loans
Less provision for impairment
Total loans to customers

31 December
2016
3,208,888
1,683,263
4,892,151
(313,467)
4,578,684

31 December
2015
3,618,558
779,278
4,397,836
(296,798)
4,101,038

Group loans are unsecured loans granted to groups of borrowers who sign loan agreements with joint
responsibility to repay the loan.

Unsecured loans − group loans
Group loans secured by collateral
Individual loans secured by collateral
Unsecured individual loans
Less: provision for impairment
Total loans to customers

31 December
2016
3,190,701
18,187
1,575,873
107,390
4,892,151
(313,467)
4,578,684

31 December
2015
3,571,629
46,929
608,885
170,393
4,397,836
(296,798)
4,101,038

Collateral and other credit enhancements
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty.
Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation parameters.
The main types of collateral are as follows:
• guarantees and surety from third parties;
• goods and inventory;
• immovable property.
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Loans are made principally within Kyrgyz Republic in the following industry sectors:

Analysis by sector
Agriculture
Trade
Mortgage loans
Services
Consumer loans
Manufacturing industry
Other
Less provision for impairment
Total loans to customers

31 December
2016

31 December
2015

2,821,048
700,727
397,400
372,657
367,010
67,602
165,706
4,892,151
(313,467)
4,578,684

2,598,449
605,729
123,832
254,484
552,106
47,546
215,690
4,397,836
(296,798)
4,101,038

31 December
2016
278,242
198,845
(29,065)
6,128
454,150

31 December
2015
−
−
−
–
−

432,641

−

15. Investment securities
Securities held to maturity include the following:

State Treasury Bonds
State Treasury Bills
Discount on securities
Accrued interest on securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Securities held to maturity, pledged under a loan agreement with
the NBKR

As of 31 December 2016 securities held-to-maturity in the amount of KGS 432,641 thousand are pledged
as collateral for a loan received from the NBKR.

16. Property and equipment and intangible assets

At cost
31 December 2014
Purchases
Disposals
Transfers
31 December 2015

Lease- Furniture
hold and office
improveequipLand Buildings
ments
ment

ComConTotal
puters
struction
property
hardin prog- and equipware Vehicles
ress
ment

1,364
−
−
−
1,364

217,009
606
−
−
217,615

11,596
3,049
(420)
−
14,225

53,030
32,324
(546)
−
84,808

63,291
6,073
(2,513)
−
66,851

34,438
7,630
−
−
42,068

9,684
625
−
−
10,309

390,412
50,307
(3,479)
−
437,240

Purchases
Disposals
Transfers
31 December 2016

−
−
−
1,364

2,477
−
25,449
245,541

8,240
(1,045)
−
21,420

49,521
(1,553)
−
132,776

10,788
(1,482)
−
76,157

458
(1,280)
1,505
42,751

15,140
−
(25,449)
−

86,624
(5,360)
1,505
520,009
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Lease- Furniture
hold and office
improveequipLand Buildings
ments
ment

ComConTotal
puters
struction
property
hardin prog- and equipware Vehicles
ress
ment

Accumulated
depreciation and
amortization
31 December 2014
Charge for the year
Written off on disposal
Transfers
31 December 2015

−
−
−
−
−

(12,585)
(4,726)
−
−
(17,311)

(4,631)
(3,220)
164
−
(7,687)

Charge for the year
Written off on disposal
Transfers
31 December 2016

−
−
−
−

(5,127)
−
−
(22,438)

(5,054)
881
−
(11,860)

1,364

200,304

6,538

45,805

9,370

1,364

223,103

9,560

79,862

12,564

Net carryng amount as
of 31 December 2015
Net carryng amount as
of 31 December 2016

(31,982) (52,393)
(7,494) (7,487)
473
2,399
−
−
(39,003) (57,481)

(19,265)
(3,994)
–
−
(23,259)

−
−
−
−
−

(120,856)
(26,921)
3,036
−
(144,741)

(15,369) (7,346) (4,765)
1,458
1,234
1,280
−
− (1,505)
(52,914) (63,593) (28,249)

−
−
−

(37,661)
4,853
(1,505)
(179,054)

18,809

10,309

292,499

14,502

−

340,955

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, property and equipment included fully amortised equipment with
an initial cost of KGS 95,076 thousand and KGS 85,789 thousand, respectively.

17. Intangible assets
At cost
31 December 2014
Purchases
Disposals
Transfers
31 December 2015
Purchases
Disposals
Transfers
31 December 2016
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
31 December 2014
Charge for the year
Written off on disposal
31 December 2015
Charge for the year
Written off on disposal
Transfers
31 December 2016
Net carryng amount
31 December 2015
Net carryng amount
31 December 2016
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105,448
9,748
−
−
115,196
8,972
(479)
−
123,689
(53,740)
(11,255)
−
(64,995)
(12,294)
479
−
(76,810)
50,201
46,879
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As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, intangible assets included software.
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, intangible assets included fully amortised software with an initial
cost of KGS 25,867 thousand and KGS 25,410 thousand, respectively.

18. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Currency swap
Total derivative financial
instruments

31 December 2016
Notional
Net fair value
value
Assets Liabilities
789,995
68,345
−
68,345

−

31 December 2015
Notional
Net fair value
value
Assets Liabilities
2,308,841
443,700
−
443,700

−

Swaps
Swaps are contractual agreements between two parties to exchange movements in interest and foreign
currency rates and equity indices, and (in the case of credit default swaps) to make payments with
respect to defined credit events based on specified notional amounts.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had KGS denominated loans in the amount of KGS 162,934 thousand
(2015: KGS 930,380 thousand) received from local banks and security deposits denominated in US dollars
in the amount of KGS 187,337 thousand (USD 2,706 thousand) (2015: KZT 1,126,981 thousand or USD
14,848 thousand), which serve as security against these loans. Since the contractual effect of these loans
and deposits is equivalent to currency swap, the said transactions have been combined and treated
as a derivative. Although the Group uses these derivative financial instruments for the purpose of risk
hedging, these instruments do not meet the hedge accounting requirements.

19. Other assets

Other financial assets
Accounts receivable
Other non-financial assets
Advances for services and goods
Advances paid
Inventories
Prepayment for taxes other than income tax
Other
Less provision for impairment
Total other assets

31 December
2016

31 December
2015

1,003
1,003

16,166
16,166

10,463
4,885
2,402
2,059
4,827
25,639

26,213
7,170
4,008
2,027
1,284
56,868

(97)
25,542

(5,649)
51,219
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20, Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions
31 December
2016
605,906
1,764,461
519,166
1,040,264
196,816
109,481
4,236,094

National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic
Investment funds
European Bank for Reconstruction and Development
Loans from Shareholders
Loans from Ministry of finance of Kyrgyz Republic
Loans from other financial institution
Total amounts due to banks and other financial institutions

31 December
2015
−
2,964,816
722,314
616,943
204,549
76,042
4,584,664

Debt to the NBKR includes a medium-term loan and accrued interest expenses in the amount of KGS
5,906 thousand.
The Loan Agreement disclosed above requires the Group to meet certain financial conditions. These
financial conditions include agreed ratios, debt-to-equity ratios, and other various financial ratios.

21. Other liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Accounts payable for services and goods
Total other financial liabilities
Other non-financial liabilities
Accrued expenses on vacation and bonuses to employees
Provision for court filings
Liabilities under Community Development Initiative project
Taxes other than income tax
Accrued expenses under health program
Accrued expenses under pension program
Accrued expenses related to public relations
Other
Total other non-financial liabilities
Total other liabilities

31 December
2016

31 December
2015

8,665
8,665

8,128
8,128

103,122
60,702
−
22,806
−
9,997
2,000
25,846
224,473
233,138

110,115
60,702
13,322
33,744
15,566
12,645
3,200
18,487
267,781
275,909

31 December
2016
57,278

31 December
2015
62,796

22. Subordinated debt
Counterparty
Triple Jump Innovation Fund B.V. (Netherlands)

Interest rate
10.50%

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, subordinated debt includes amounts due to Triple Jump Innovation
Fund B.V. with maturity on 15 November 2020. The amount indicated in table above included accrued
interest amounting to KGS 1,894 thousand and KGS 2,277 thousand, respectively.
As at 31 December 2016, subordinated debt to Triple Jump Innovation Fund B.V. included unamortised
fees paid for receipt of loan amounting to KGS 495 thousand.

50

KOMPANION BANK CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (in thousands of Kyrgyz Som)

23. Customer accounts
Customer accounts include the following items:

Current accounts
Term deposits
Held as security for guarantees
Customer accounts

31 December
2016
357,117
555,038
4,076
916,231

31 December
2015
−
−
−
−

As of 31 December 2016 customer accounts in the amount of KGS 419,903 thousand (46%) represented
the funds of the ten largest customers (2015: KGS 0 thousand).
Term deposits include deposits of individuals in the amount of KGS 364,079 thousand (2015: 0 thousand
Som). In accordance with the Civil Code of the Kyrgyz Republic, the Group is obliged to issue the amount
of such deposit at the first request of the depositor. In cases where a term deposit is returned to the
depositor upon demand before the maturity of the term, interest on the deposit is paid in the amount
corresponding to the interest paid by the Group on demand deposits, unless the contract provides for
a different amount of interest.
The following customer categories are included in customer accounts:

Individuals
State and Budget Organizations
Private companies
Employees
Key management
Board of Directors
Other
Customer accounts

31 December
2016
406,897
362,454
108,686
29,831
2,904
1,339
4,120
916,231

31 December
2015
−
−
−
−
−
−
−
−

31 December
2016
440,971
182,416
142,524
69,286
30,385
4,952
4,717
4,089
3,108
1,668
342
7
31,766
916,231

31 December
2015
−
−
−
−
−
−
−
−
−
−
−
−
−
−

Below is the breakdown of customer accounts by industry:

Individuals
Services of financial and credit institutions
Public administration
Insurance
Trade
Healthcare
Transport and communication
Building
Manufacturing industry
Production and distribution of electricity, gas and water
Agriculture
Mining industry
Other
Customer accounts
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24. Subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements include the following major subsidiaries:

Name of subsidiary
MCC Kompanion Invest LLC
MCC Kompanion LLC

Principal
activities
Micro lending,
Islamiс finance
Micro lending

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power held by
the Bank
Country
31 December
31 December
of incorporation
2016
2015
Kyrgyzstan
Tajikistan

99.99%
90.00%

99.99%
90.00%

MCC Kompanion Invest LLC
LLC MCC Kompanion Invest received a certificate of state registration in the Ministry of Justice of
Kyrgyzstan on 1 November 2011 and a license of the National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic on 21
November 2011.
MCC Kompanion LLC
MKK Kompanion LLC received a certificate of state registration in the Tax Authorities of the Republic of
Tajikistan on 18 July 2011. As of 31 December 2016, the license of the National Bank of Tajikistan was
not received.

25. Share capital
Movements in shares outstanding, issued and fully paid were as follows:

31 December 2014
Increase in share capital
31 December 2015
Increase in share capital
31 December 2016

Number of Total amount of
shares ordinary shares
650,400
650,400
350,216
350,216
1,000,616
1,000,616
−
−
1,000,616
1,000,616

Nominal value per common share is KGS 1,000.
As of 31 December 2016 and 2015, the amount of registered and paid authorized capital was KGS 1.01
million.

26. Financial commitments and contingencies
Capital commitments
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had no commitments for capital expenditure.
Operating lease commitments
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had no material commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases.
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Legal claims
From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Group are received from
customers and counterparties. As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, a provision for contingent court claims
was recognised in the amount of KGS 60,702 thousand (Note 18). Management believes that disclosure
of full information as required by IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets may
prejudice the position of the Group in such disputes, and opts not to disclose as permitted by IAS 37.
Taxation
Due to existence of the clause in commercial legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic and countries, where the
Group operates, particularly tax legislation that may allow more than one interpretation and additionally,
due to the practice of tax authorities of making arbitrary judgements of business activities, if a particular
treatment, based on management’s judgement of the Group’s business activities is to be challenged by
the tax authorities, the Group may be assessed additional taxes, penalties and interest.
Such uncertainty could, in particular, refer to the valuation of financial instruments, formation of
provisions for impairment and determination the level of price indexes on transactions. Additionally
such uncertainty may relate to the valuation of temporary differences on the provision and recovery of
the provision for impairment losses on loans to customers and receivables, as an underestimation of
the taxable profit. The management of the Group believes that it has accrued all tax amounts due and
therefore no allowance has been made in the consolidated financial statements.
Operating environment
Emerging markets such as Kyrgyz Republic are subject to different risks than more developed markets,
including economic, political and social, and legal and legislative risks. Laws and regulations affecting
businesses in Kyrgyz Republic continue to change rapidly, tax and regulatory frameworks are subject
to varying interpretations. The future economic direction of Kyrgyz Republic is heavily influenced by
the fiscal and monetary policies adopted by the government, together with developments in the legal,
regulatory, and political environment.

27. Related party transactions
In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is paid to the substance of the
relationship rather than only their legal status. The Group had the following transactions outstanding
with related parties:

Organizations under common
control
Amounts due from banks and other
financial institutions
Shareholders
Amounts due to banks and other
financial institutions
Key personnel
Customer accounts

31 December 2016
Total category
as per financial
Related party
statements
transactions
caption

31 December 2015
Total category
as per financial
Related party
statements
transactions
caption

−

−

18,262

1,317,656

1,040,264

4,236,094

616,943

4,584,664

4,243

916,231

−

−
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Included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 there are the following amounts which arose due to transactions
with related parties:

Organizations under common
control
Interest income
Shareholders
Interest expense
Other income
Compensation to key management
personnel
Short-term rewards

Year ended 31 December 2016
Total category
as per financial
Related party
statements
transactions
caption

Year ended 31 December 2015
Total category
as per financial
Related party
statements
transactions
caption

−

−

3,524

1,671,875

89,056
14,486

600,754
16,008

37,398
1,508

493,863
16,433

39,493

477,969

31,420

474,922

28. Fair value of financial instruments
The estimate of fair value is intended to approximate the amount to sell the asset or transfer the
liability between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. However, considering
the uncertainties and the use of judgements, the fair value should not be interpreted as realisable within
the framework of an immediate sale of assets or the transfer of liabilities.
The estimated fair values of financial assets and liabilities are calculated using discounted cash flow
techniques based on estimated future cash flows and discount rates for similar instruments at the
reporting date.
Fair value hierarchy
For the purpose of disclosing the fair values, the Group determined classes of assets and liabilities based
on the assets and liabilities nature, characteristics and risks as well as the hierarchy of fair value sources.

31 December 2016
Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Assets whose fair value is
disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from banks and
other financial institutions
Investment securities
Loans to customers
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Quoted prices
in active
Date
markets
of valuation
(Level 1)
31 December
2016
31 December
2016
31 December
2016
31 December
2016
31 December
2016

Significant
Significant
observable non-observable
inputs
inputs
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

Total

−

−

68,345

68,345

924,353

−

−

924,353

343,520

−

−

343,520

454,150

−

−

454,150

−

4,578,684

−

4,578,684
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Other financial assets
Liabilities whose fair value is
disclosed
Customer accounts
Amounts due to banks and
other financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Other financial liabilities
31 December 2015
Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Assets whose fair value is
disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from banks and
other financial institutions
Loans to customers
Other financial assets
Liabilities whose fair value is
disclosed
Amounts due to banks and
other financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Other financial liabilities

Quoted prices
in active
Date
markets
of valuation
(Level 1)
31 December
2016
−

Total

1,003

−

1,003

−

916,231

−

916,231

−
−

4,236,094
57,278

−
−

4,236,094
57,278

−

8,665

−

8,665

−

−

443,700

443,700

1,298,395

−

−

1,298,395

19,261

−

−

19,261

−

4,101,038

−

4,101,038

−

16,166

−

16,166

−

4,584,664

−

4,584,664

−

62,796

−

62,796

−

8,128

−

8,128

31 December
2016
31 December
2016
31 December
2016

31 December
2015
31 December
2016
31 December
2015
31 December
2015
31 December
2015

Significant
Significant
observable non-observable
inputs
inputs
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

31 December
2015
31 December
2015
31 December
2015

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value
Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Bank’s financial
instruments that are not carried at fair value in the statement of financial position. The table does not
include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities.
2016

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

2015

Carrying
value

Fair
value

Unrecognised (loss)/
income

Carrying
amount

Fair
value

Unrecognised (loss)/
income

924,353

924,353

−

1,298,295

1,298,295

−
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2016

Amounts due from banks and
other financial institutions
Loans to customers
Investment Securities
Other financial assets
Financial liabilities
Customer accounts
Amounts due to banks and
other financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Other financial liabilities
Total unrecognised change
in unrealized fair value

Carrying
value

UnrecogniFair sed (loss)/
value
income

2015
Carrying
amount

Fair
value

Unrecognised (loss)/
income

343,520
4,578,684
454,150
1,003

343,520
4,861,952
456,421
1,003

−
283,268
2,271
−

19,261
4,101,038

19,261
4,347,161

−
246,123

16,166

16,166

−

916,231

916,231

−

−

−

−

4,236,094
57,278
8,665

3,811,127
42,039
8,665

(424,967)
(15,239)
−

4,584,664
62,796
8,128

4,165,372
45,605
8,128

(419,292)
(17,191)
−

(154,667)

(190,360)

29. Capital management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to the Shareholder through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this review,
management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management, the Group balances its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

30. Risk management policies
Management of risk is an essential element of the Group’s operations. The main risks inherent to the
Group’s operations are:
• credit risk;
• operational risk;
• liquidity risk;
• market risk.
The Group recognises that it is essential to have efficient and effective risk management processes in
place. To enable this, the Group has established a risk management framework, whose main purpose is
to protect the Group from risk and allow it to achieve its performance objectives.
Risk management policies and procedures
The Group’s risk management policies aim to identify, analyse and manage the risks faced by the Group,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor continuously risk levels and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and procedures are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions, goods and services offered and emerging best practice.
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The Board of Directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the oversight of the risk management
framework, overseeing the management of key risks as well as approving significantly large transactions.
The Management Board of the Group is responsible for monitoring and implementation of risk
mitigation measures and making sure that the Group operates within the established risk parameters.
Each department is responsible for direct management of the relevant risks, and together with the legal
department continuously monitors compliance with currently effective legislation.
Credit, market and liquidity risks are controlled through a system of different committees.
Both external and internal risk factors are identified and managed throughout the organisational
structure of the Group.
Through the risk management framework, the Group manages the following risks:
Credit risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.
Risk management and monitoring is performed within set limits of authority, by the Credit Committees and
the Group’s Management. Before any application is made by the Credit Committee, all recommendations
on credit processes (borrower’s limits approved, or amendments made to loan agreements, etc.) are
reviewed and approved by the Branch Management. Daily risk management is performed by the Credit
Administration Department.
The Group has developed policies and procedures for the management of credit exposures including
guidelines to limit portfolio concentration and the establishment of a Credit Committee, which actively
monitors the Group’s credit risk. The Group’s credit policy is reviewed and approved by the Board of
Directors. The Group establishes limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or
group of borrowers, and to industry segments. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily.
Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential
borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits
where appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral and corporate
and personal guarantees but a significant portion is personal lending, where no such facilities can
be obtained. Such risks are monitored on a continuous basis and subject to annual or more frequent
reviews.
Operational risk
The Group is exposed to operational risk which is the risk of losses that can be a result of any system
inefficiencies or breaks of internal process, systems, presence of human error or effect of any external
negative factor.
The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse this risk to set appropriate
risk limits and controls.
Maximum exposure
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk varies significantly and is dependent on both individual
risks and general market economy risks.
The following table presents the maximum exposure to credit risk of balance sheet and off balance
sheet financial assets and contingent liabilities. For financial assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position, the maximum exposure equals to the carrying amount value of those assets prior to
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any offset or collateral. For financial guarantees and other off balance sheet assets contingent liabilities,
the maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount the Group would have to pay if the
guarantee was called on or in the case of commitments, if the loan amount was called on.

As of 31 December 2016
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from banks and other
financial institutions
Investment securities
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Loans to customers
Other financial assets
Financial guarantee

As of 31 December 2015
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from banks and other
financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Loans to customers
Other financial assets

Maximum
exposure
924,353

Offset
−

343,520
454,150

−
−

68,345
4,578,684
1,003
4,076

−
−
−
−

Net
Net exposure
exposure
after offset
after offset Collateral and collateral
924,353
−
924,353
343,520
454,150

−

343,520
454,150

68,345
−
4,578,684 3,599,565
1,003
−
4,076
4,076

68,345
979,119
1,003
−

Net
Net exposure
exposure
after offset
after offset Collateral and collateral
1,298,395
−
1,298,395

Maximum
exposure
1,298,395

Offset
−

19,261

−

19,261

−

19,261

443,700
4,101,038
16,166

−
−
−

443,700
4,101,038
16,166

−
1,769,148
−

443,700
2,331,890
16,166

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group did not hold any international rated financial assets.
The banking industry is generally exposed to credit risk regarding financial instruments. The credit risk
exposure of the Group is concentrated within the Kyrgyz Republic. The exposure is monitored on a
regular basis to ensure that the credit limits and credit worthiness guidelines established by the Group’s
credit and risk management policy are not breached.
In determining the credit risk of financial assets, which do not have ratings, the Group uses internal
scoring models based on risk ranking criteria. The scoring model takes into consideration the financial
performance of the borrower, the ability of repayment and any delays in repayment and the collateral
pledged against any borrowings. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment.
The Group manages credit risk of financial assets by use of an internal rating system. Loans to customers
are classified based on internal evaluations and other analytical procedures, branches and Credit
Administration Department classify loans according to their risk and the risk of potential losses, with
classifications subject to the approval of the Credit Committee.
Standard loans
The financial condition of the borrower is assessed as stable and there is no indication of any external
or internal factors to suggest that the financial condition of the borrower has deteriorated. In case there
are some minor negative indicators, the Group has confidence that the borrower will be able to cope
with such (temporary) difficulties. Interest and principal are repaid in full and in a timely manner and/
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or existing delinquencies in interest do not exceed 30 days. The borrower is considered not impaired as
having the ability to repay the loan in accordance with its terms and conditions.
Doubtful category 1
There is evidence of a temporary deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower, including a
decrease in income or a loss of market share. The borrower repays the loan principal and the interest
without delay and in full. Key characteristics are overdue amounts from 31 to 90 days, prolongation of
loan, and the repayment of the loan depends to an extent on the realisation of collateral. The amount
of collateral is sufficient to cover principal amount, interest income accrued, and expenses related to
the sale of collateral.
Doubtful category 2
The deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower has reached a critical level, including significant
operating losses, a loss of market position, negative equity and it is probable that the borrower will be
unable to repay the loan and the interest in full. The possibility of loss of doubtful assets is very high, but
due to several specific expected factors, that could improve the quality of asset, its classification as loss
is deferred until a more precise assessment can be performed. Key characteristics are overdue amounts
from 91 to 180 days, or the quality of collateral has deteriorated since origination or it is absent.
Losses
In the absence of any information to the contrary, the borrower’s financial condition and operations have
reached the point where it is evident that the borrower cannot repay the loan and the collateral value
is negligible. The loan is uncollateralised or the value of the collateral covers less than 50 per cent of
the borrowers’ outstanding debt. Key characteristics are overdue amounts over 180 days, prolongation
over 3 times or inability or refusal of the borrower to repay the loan, or absence of the borrower. Once
all legal measures to recover the loan have been exhausted, the loan is accounted for as off-balance for
five years in case of possible repayment.
Gross loans to customers before allowance for impairment by categories:
31 December 2016
Standard loans, assessed on collective basis
Not overdue and not impaired
Past due up to 30 days, but not impaired
Past due from 30 days to 90 days, but not impaired
Past due from 90 days to 180 days, but not impaired
Past due more than 180 days, but not impaired
Individually impaired
Doubtful category 2
Losses
Total

31 December 2015
Standard loans, assessed on collective basis
Not overdue and not impaired
Past due up to 30 days, but not impaired
Past due 30 days to 90 days, but not impaired

Loans issued
to customers

Provision
for impairment

Loans issued
to customers

4,729,668
8,570
9,941
8,064
636

177,136
333
387
314
25

4,552,532
8,237
9,554
7,750
611

8,710
126,562
4,892,151

8,710
126,562
313,467

−
−
4,578,684

Loans issued
to customers

Provision
for impairment

Loans issued
to customers

4,292,549
28,837
10,066

234,802
1,577
551

4,057,747
27,260
9,515
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31 December 2015
Past due 90 days to 180 days, but not impaired
Past due more than 180 days, but not impaired
Individually impaired
Doubtful category 2
Losses
Total

Loans issued
to customers
3,726
32

Provision
for impairment
204
2

Loans issued
to customers
3,522
30

5,676
56,950
4,397,836

2,712
56,950
296,798

2,964
−
4,101,038

Geographical concentration
The management of the Bank exercises control over the risk in the legislation and regulatory arena and
assesses its influence on the Group’s activity. This approach allows the Group to minimise potential
losses from the investment climate fluctuations in the Kyrgyz Republic.
The geographical concentration of assets and liabilities is shown below:
31 December 2016
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from banks and other financial
institutions
Investment securities
Loans to customers
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Other financial assets
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Customer accounts
Amounts due to banks and other financial
institutions
Subordinated debt
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities
Net position

31 December 2015
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from banks and other financial
institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to customers
Other financial assets
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to banks and other financial
institutions
Subordinated debt

60

Kyrgyz
Republic

Countries
OECD

CIS
countries

Total

318,893

9

605,451

924,353

343,520
454,150
4,578,684
42,572
1,003
5,738,822

−
−
−
25,773
25,782

−
−
−
−
−
605,451

343,520
454,150
4,578,684
68,345
1,003
6,370,055

916,231

−

−

916,231

911,393
−
8,665
1,836,289
3,902,533

3,324,701
57,278
−
3,381,979
(3,356,197)

−
−
−
−
605,451

4,236,094
57,278
8,665
5,218,268

Kyrgyz
Republic

Countries
OECD

CIS
countries

Total

1,298,395

−

−

1,298,395

999
393,350
4,101,038
16,166
5,809,948

−
50,350
−
−
50,350

18,262
−
−
−
18,262

19,261
443,700
4,101,038
16,166
5,878,560

280,771
−

4,303,893
62,796

−
−

4,584,664
62,796
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Kyrgyz
Republic
8,128
288,899
5,521,049

31 December 2015
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities
Net position

Countries
OECD
−
4,366,689
(4,316,339)

CIS
countries
−
−
18,262

Total
8,128
4,655,588

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to availability of funds to repay liabilities as they fall due and meeting the demand
in cash in the process of crediting customers.
The Management controls these types of risks by means of maturity analysis, determining the Group’s
strategy for the next financial period. Current liquidity is managed by the Chief Financial Officer, which
supports current liquidity on sufficient level to minimise the liquidity risk.
The analysis of the balance sheet interest rate and liquidity risk is presented in the following table:

31 December 2016
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Loans to customers
Investment securities
Total interest-bearing financial
assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from banks
Other financial assets
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Customer accounts
Amounts due to banks and
financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Total interest bearing financial
liabilities
Customer accounts
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities
Difference between assets and
liabilities
Difference between interestbearing assets and liabilities
Difference between assets and
liabilities bearing accumulated
interest
Difference between assets and
liabilities bearing accumulated
interest in percent to the total
amount of assets

Less than
1 months 1-3 months

3 months
−
1 year

1 year −
5 years

Over
5 years

Total

604,008

−

−

−

−

604,008

3,362
401,344
3,867

25,006
762,216
20,005

39,977
2,171,299
172,259

−
1,152,235
258,019

−
91,590
−

68,345
4,578,684
454,150

1,012,581
320,345
343,520
1,003
1,677,449

807,227
−
−
−
807,227

2,383,535
−
−
−
2,383,535

1,410,254
−
−
−
1,410,254

91,590
−
−
−
91,590

5,705,187
320,345
343,520
1,003
6,370,055

204,077

51,275

283,438

215,110

−

753,900

15,214
−

916,351
1,894

1,418,250
−

1,720,636
55,384

165,643
−

4,236,094
57,278

219,291

969,520

1,701,688

1,991,130

165,643

5,047,272

162,331
8,665
390,287

−
−
969,520

−
−
1,701,688

−
−
1,991,130

−
−
165,643

162,331
8,665
5,218,268

1,287,162

(162,293)

681,847

(580,876)

(74,053)

793,290

(162,293)

681,847

(580,876)

(74,053)

793,290

630,997

1,312,844

731,967

657,914

11.7%

9.3%

19.3%

10.8%

9.7%
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31 December 2015
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from banks and
other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Loans to customers
Total interest-bearing financial
assets
Other financial assets
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to banks and
financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Total interest bearing financial
liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities
Difference between assets and
liabilities
Difference between interestbearing assets and liabilities
Difference between assets and
liabilities bearing accumulated
interest
Difference between assets and
liabilities bearing accumulated
interest in percent to the total
amount of assets

Less than
1 months 1-3 months

3 months
−
1 year

1 year −
5 years

Over
5 years

Total

1,298,395

−

−

−

−

1,298,395

1,636

−

−

17,625

−

19,261

142,883
506,029

225,619
850,275

20,292
2,150,957

54,906
631,649

−
27,200

443,700
4,166,110

1,948,943
1,900
1,950,843

1,075,894
1,945
1,077,839

2,171,249
11,909
2,183,158

704,180
412
704,592

27,200
−
27,200

5,927,466
16,166
5,943,632

193,601
−

540,559
2,077

1,831,110
−

1,920,782
60,719

115,527
−

4,601,579
62,796

193,601
8,128
201,729

542,636
−
542,636

1,831,110
−
1,831,110

1,981,501
−
1,981,501

115,527
−
115,527

4,664,375
8,128
4,672,503

1,749,114

535,203

352,048 (1,276,909)

(88,327)

1,755,342

533,258

340,139 (1,277,321)

(88,327)

1,755,342

2,288,600

2,628,739

1,351,418

1,263,091

28%

37%

42%

22%

20%

Substantially all of the Group’s interest earning assets are at fixed rates of interest and interest bearing
liabilities are at both fixed and floating rates.
Asset and liability maturity periods and the ability to replace interest liabilities at an acceptable cost
when they mature are crucial in determining the Group’s liquidity and its susceptibility to fluctuation of
interest rates and exchange rates.
A further analysis of the liquidity and interest rate risks is presented in the following tables in accordance
with IFRS 7. The amounts disclosed in these tables do not correspond to the amounts recorded on the
consolidated statement of financial position as the presentation below includes a maturity analysis
for financial liabilities that indicates the total remaining undiscounted contractual payments (including
interest payments), which are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
table represents the breakdown of maturity according to contractual conditions.
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31 December 2016
Financial liabilities
Customer accounts
Amounts due to banks and
other financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Total financial liabilities

31 December 2015
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to banks and
other financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Total financial liabilities

Weighted
average
effective Less than
interest rate 1 months
9.22%
13.10%
11.14%

204,077

3 months
−
1 year

1 year −
5 years

Over
5 years

Total

51,275

283,438

215,110

−

753,900

165,884 1,040,739
912,057 2,434,363
−
2,884
2,931
72,846
369,961 1,094,898 1,198,426 2,722,319

Weighted
average
effective Less than
interest rate 1 months
10.98%
11.14%

1-3
months

121,832
−
121,832

3 months
1-3
−
months
1 year

1 year −
5 years

509,576 1,533,765 2,940,350
3,188
3,188
92,465
512,764 1,536,953 3,032,815

265,825 4,818,868
−
78,661
265,825 5,651,429

Over
5 years

Total

535,534 5,641,057
−
98,841
535,534 5,739,898

Market risk
Market risk covers interest rate risk, currency risk and other pricing risks to which the Group is exposed.
There have been no changes as to the way the Group measures risk or to the risk it is exposed in 2016.
The Group is exposed to interest rate risks as it borrows funds at both fixed and floating rates. The risk
is managed by the Group maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.
Product Development Management and Treasury Departments also manage interest rate and market
risks by matching the Group’s interest rate position, which provides the Group with a positive interest
margin. Planning and Analysis Department conducts monitoring of the Group’s current financial
performance, estimates the Group’s sensitivity to changes in interest rates and its influence on the
Group’s profitability.
Interest rate sensitivity risk
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 1% increase or decrease in interest rates in
2016 and 2015, respectively. Management of the Group believes that given the current economic
conditions in the Kyrgyz Republic that a 1% increase is a realistic movement in the interest rates. This is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting interest rate internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the possible change in interest rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding assets and liabilities with floating rates.
Impact on net profit based on asset values as at 31 December 2016 and 2015:

Liabilities
Amounts due to banks and other financial
institutions
Net impact on profit before tax

31 December 2016
31 December 2015
Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate
+1%
-1%
+1%
-1%
(9,859)
(9,859)

9,859
9,859

5,009
5,009

(5,009)
(5,009)
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Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group’s financial position and cash flows are exposed to changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. The Management manages currency risk by defining open currency position based on
assumed KGS depreciation and other macroeconomic indicators, which allows the Group to minimise
losses from significant fluctuation of local and foreign currency exchange rates.
The Group enters into various derivative financial instruments, including foreign exchange swaps and
secured loans with commercial banks to minimise exchange risk. The result from such transactions for
2016 and 2015 was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income account as a loss of KGS 165,661 thousand and KGS 298,774 thousand, respectively.
Information on the Groups currency risk level is given below:
31 December 2016

KGS

USD

Other
currencies

Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from banks and other financial
institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to customers
Investment securities
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

236,735

638,053

49,565

924,353

−
(698,649)
4,320,378
454,150
1,003
4,313,617

343,520
814,312
258,306
−
−
2,054,191

−
(47,318)
−
−
−
2,247

343,520
68,345
4,578,684
454,150
1,003
6,370,055

Financial liabilities
Customer accounts
Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities
Open balance sheet position

817,063
2,370,451
−
5,729
3,193,243
1,120,374

97,311
1,865,643
57,278
2,936
2,023,168
31,023

1,857
−
−
−
1,857
390

916,231
4,236,094
57,278
8,665
5,218,268

KGS

USD

Other
currencies

Total

129,294

1,160,624

8,477

1,298,395

18,501
(1,868,831)
4,101,038
16,166
2,396,168

760
2,312,531
−
−
3,473,915

−
−
−
−
8,477

19,261
443,700
4,101,038
16,166
5,878,560

1,374,242
−
4,987
1,379,229
1,016,939

3,210,422
62,796
3,141
3,276,359
197,556

−
−
−
−
8,477

4,584,664
62,796
8,128
4,655,588

31 December 2015
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from banks and other financial
institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to customers
Other financial assets
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions
Subordinated debt
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities
Open balance sheet position
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The above Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk shows swap agreements on a
net basis, included in derivative financial instruments (Note 15). The gross exposure of the Group on
derivative financial instruments is shown below:
Derivative financial instruments
31 December 2016
31 December 2015

KGS

RUB

USD

EUR

Total

(698,649)
(1,868,831)

(18,180)
–

814,312
2,312,531

(29,138)
–

68,345
443,700

Currency risk sensitivity
The following table provides an analysis of sensitivity of the Group to 10% increase and decrease in the
USD to KGS and 20% increase in 2016 and 10% decrease in 2015. The management of the Group believes
that in the current economic conditions in Kyrgyzstan, 10% reduction represents a realistic change in the
KGS exchange rate to the USD, 10% is the sensitivity level used within the Group in preparing currency
risk reports for key management personnel of the Group and represents Management’s assessment
of possible changes in exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only the amounts in foreign
currency available at the end of the period.
Impact on net profit based on asset values as at 31 December 2016 and 2015:

Possible exchange rate fluctuation
Impact on profit and loss before tax

31 December 2016
KGS/USD
+10%
-10%
3,087
(3,087)

31 December 2015
KGS/USD
+20%
-10%
41,207
(20,603)

Limitations of sensitivity analysis
The above tables demonstrate the effect of a change in a key assumption while other assumptions remain
unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions and other factors. It should also
be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear, and larger or smaller impacts should not be interpolated
or extrapolated from these results.
The sensitivity analyses do not take into consideration that the Group’s assets and liabilities are actively
managed. Additionally, the financial position of the Group may vary at the time that any actual market
movement occurs. For example, the Group’s financial risk management strategy aims to manage the
exposure to market fluctuations. As investment markets move past various trigger levels, management
actions could include selling investments, changing investment portfolio allocation and taking other
protective action.

31. Subsequent events
There have been no events subsequent to period end which require adjustment of or disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

32. Approval of financial statements to the issue
The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 were approved for issue
on 13 March 2017.
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Быть ведущим финансовым институтом по развитию
сообществ в Центральной Азии.

ЦЕЛИ КОМПАНЬОНА:
Содействовать росту малого бизнеса и развитию
возможностей социального предпринимательства
Помочь клиентам создать здоровые и финансово
стабильные сообщества
Поддерживать сохранение природных ресурсов
и содействовать практике их рационального
использования клиентами и сообществами
Оценивать успех на основе реальных изменений
Возглавить инновации социального бизнеса в
Центральной Азии
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УВАЖАЕМЫЕ КЛИЕНТЫ, АКЦИОНЕРЫ И ПАРТНЕРЫ!
Позвольте представить вам годовой отчет о деятельности Банка Компаньон за 2016 год.
Стоит отметить, что 2016 год для мировой экономики был не самым простым, но Кыргызстан
успешно прошел период нестабильности на валютном рынке, став одной из немногих стран,
где можно было наблюдать укрепление национальной валюты. Возвращение экономики к
докризисному уровню дает нам новые возможности, и в то же время бросает нам новые
вызовы.
Для Банка Компаньон 2016 год стал еще одним успешным периодом активного развития и
качественных преобразований. Самым стратегически важным событием стало, безусловно,
получение банковской лицензии и трансформация в банк. Мы уверенно вошли в новый сектор
и запустили основные банковские продукты и услуги: депозиты, международные денежные
переводы, кредитование малого и среднего бизнеса, расчетно-кассовое
обслуживание,
платежные карты «Элкарт»; установили корреспондентские отношения с иностранными
банками. Безусловно, всего этого удалось достичь только благодаря содействию акционеров,
поддержке Совета директоров и высокому профессионализму наших сотрудников. И
мы выражаем признательность акционерам и членам Совета директоров за надежное
сотрудничество, клиентам за доверие и сотрудникам за приверженность делу!
В 2017 году мы продолжим активную работу над внедрением полного спектра банковских
услуг, становясь лучше, ближе и удобнее для наших клиентов. Мы уверены, что дальнейшая
реализация выбранной нами стратегии позволит укрепить позиции Банка Компаньон на
финансовом рынке страны.
С уважением,
Уланбек Термечиков
Председатель Правления
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2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

ОБЩЕЕ
КОЛИЧЕСТВО
КЛИЕНТОВ

8 591

12 221

21 803

40 326

70 812

99 386

119 396

137 310

116 719

108 596

115 167

113 332

96 832

КРЕДИТНЫЙ
ПОРТФЕЛЬ
(МЛН. СОМ)

132

158

272

768

1 119

1 330

1 959

2 764

2 600

4 010

4 739

4 415

4 849

ПОРТФЕЛЬ
ПОД РИСКОМ

0,9%

0,8%

0,4%

0,2%

0,5%

0,5%

0,3%

0,3%

0,9%

0,3%

0,7%

1,4%

2,1%

КОЛИЧЕСТВО
СОТРУДНИКОВ

151

138

173

503

801

835

929

1 038

1 062

915

823

903

1 053

КОЛИЧЕСТВО
ОФИСОВ

32

29

42

56

81

82

92

157

161

141

124

108

109

ССТР (СОВОКУПНОСТЬ СРЕДНЕГОДОВОГО ТЕМПА РОСТА2)

35%
КРЕДИТНЫЙ

ПОРТФЕЛЬ

18%

КОЛИЧЕСТВО
СОТРУДНИКОВ

ОБЩЕЕ КОЛИЧЕСТВО

КЛИЕНТОВ

22%
КОЛИЧЕСТВО

ОФИСОВ

11%

1 - ОБМЕННЫЙ КУРС НБКР ПО СОСТОЯНИЮ НА 31 ДЕКАБРЯ 2016 ГОДА СОСТАВИЛ 69.2301 СОМА К 1 ДОЛЛАРУ США
2 - ССТР - СОВОКУПНЫЙ СРЕДНЕГОДОВОЙ ТЕМП РОСТА РАСЧИТЫВАЕТСЯ ПО ФОРМУЛЕ
((ПОРТФЕЛЬ 2016 Г. / ПОРТФЕЛЬ 2004 Г.) ^ (1/12)-1)
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ЯНВАРЬ
Получение банковской лицензии
11 января 2016 года Национальный банк Кыргызской Республики выдал ЗАО «Банк Компаньон»
полную лицензию на право проведения банковских операций в национальной и иностранной
валютах. Получение банковской лицензии позволило расширить спектр предлагаемых услуг
и открыть клиентам новые каналы доступа к банковским продуктам: депозитам, денежным
переводам и обменным операциям. Перейдя на новый уровень развития Банк Компаньон
продолжает следовать своей миссии – быть ведущим финансовым институтом по развитию
сообществ в Центральной Азии.
Партнерство с Агентством по защите депозитов
16 января Банк Компаньон стал участником системы защиты депозитов Кыргызской Республики.
Cистема защиты банковских вкладов призвана обеспечить дополнительную защиту прав
и законных интересов вкладчиков коммерческих банков, укрепить доверие к банковской
системе и стимулировать привлечение сбережений населения в банковскую систему страны.
Данные механизмы защиты реализуются в соответствии с Законом Кыргызской Республики «О
защите банковских вкладов (депозитов)».
МАРТ
Запуск депозитных продуктов
С 1 марта Банк Компаньон запустил линейку депозитных продуктов для физических и
юридических лиц: «Регулярный доход», «Накопительный план» и «Будущий миллионер». Теперь
клиентам банка доступен удобный и надежный финансовый инструмент, позволяющий не
только сохранить, но и приумножить денежные средства.
Сотрудничество с Государственной ипотечной компанией
11 марта 2016 года Банк Компаньон подписал Генеральное соглашение о сотрудничестве с
Государственной ипотечной компанией и стал участником Программы Правительства КР
«Доступное жильё 2015-2020». Целью программы является осуществление вклада в устойчивое
развитие экономики Кыргызской Республики путем развития рынка ипотеки, улучшения
доступа населения к жилью, решения социальных задач в области жилищного обеспечения
на благо процветания общества и повышения уровня жизни.
АВГУСТ
Запуск международных систем денежных переводов
Банк Компаньон запустил денежные переводы по международным системам «Золотая Корона»
и Contact, а также переводы в иностранной валюте по системе SWIFT. Наличие нескольких
систем денежных переводов и широкая филиальная сеть Банка Компаньон позволяют клиентам
оперативно и надёжно переводить денежные средства в национальной и иностранной валюте,
с открытием и без открытия счета, в пользу физических и юридических лиц, по территории
Кыргызстана и за его пределами.
СЕНТЯБРЬ
Запуск национальной платежной карты «Элкарт»
Банк Компаньон запустил карту национальной платежной системы Кыргызской Республики
«Элкарт». Карта «Элкарт» - это доступный, надежный, безопасный банковский продукт,
предназначенный для осуществления безналичных расчетов, получения заработной платы,
пенсий, пособий, а также для осуществления платежей в бюджет за различные виды
государственных услуг населению, оплаты налогов, таможенных пошлин, страховых взносов
и т.д.
ОКТЯБРЬ
Сотрудничество с Российско-Кыргызским Фондом развития
4 октября Банк Компаньон подписал соглашение с Российско-Кыргызским Фондом развития
о предоставлении кредитной линии на финансирование малого и среднего бизнеса. В рамках
данного сотрудничества предприниматели получили доступ к льготному финансированию
долгосрочных производственных инвестиций в промышленность (включая швейную,
текстильную, горнодобывающую, металлургическую отрасли), транспорт и инфраструктуру
туризма, медицины, торговли и образования.
ДЕКАБРЬ
Участие в программе KyrSEFF+
19 декабря Банк Компаньон стал участником Программы финансирования устойчивой
энергии в Кыргызстане (KyrSEFF+) Европейского банка реконструкции и развития (ЕБРР).
В рамках программы банк запустил кредитование проектов по энергоэффективности,
ресурсосбережению и возобновляемым источникам энергии в жилых домах и коммерческих
организациях. Клиентам предоставляется возможность получить не только финансирование,
но и техническую помощь на безвозмездной основе по оптимизации энергопотребления и
выбору приемлемого оборудования.
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2016 YEAR

БЕСПЛАТНЫХ КОНСУЛЬТАЦИЙ

АГРОНОМА И

ВЕТЕРИНАРА

УСЛУГИ ПО РАЗВИТИЮ БИЗНЕСА
Компаньон является единственным банком в Кыргызстане, который содержит отдел
технической поддержки, состоящий из 32 высококвалифицированных специалистов по
агрономии и животноводству. Уникальный интегрированный подход Банка Компаньон,
заключающийся в предоставлении финансовых продуктов и нефинансовых услуг по
развитию бизнеса, позволяет клиентам повышать урожайность и производительность
скота, применяя этноэкологический подход к управлению природными ресурсами и
производственными активами. В 2016 году более 12 300 активных клиентов получили
консультации по развитию сельскохозяйственного бизнеса на безвозмездной основе.
УМНЫЕ ИНВЕСТИЦИИ
В целях усиления интеграции финансовых продуктов и услуг по развитию бизнеса
командой развития разработана и внедрена концепция «умных инвестиций». Это простые
и понятные инвестиционные бизнес - идеи, сопровождаемые наглядным техническим
материалом, отражающим суть идеи и дающим основные расчеты, иллюстрирующие
возможные экономические выгоды клиента от сельскохозяйственного бизнеса. Клиент
Банка Компаньона получает не только денежные средства, но и информацию о том,
как воспользоваться низкозатратными агротехниками, как улучшить производство,
маркетинг и бизнес-методы, которые требуют минимальных вложений физического и
финансового капитала и приводят к повышению доходов, урожайности, увеличению
производства и продовольственной безопасности.
СИСТЕМА МОНИТОРИНГА РЫНОЧНЫХ ЦЕН
Система мониторинга рыночных цен с 2012 года позволяет ежемесячно отслеживать
цены на основные сельскохозяйственные продукты (скот, семена, мясо, овощи, фрукты)
на крупных рынках во всех областях страны. На основе этой информации клиенты Банка
Компаньона принимают более выгодные решения относительно реализации своей
продукции в том или ином регионе. Рыночные цены анализируются и распространяются
для клиентов во всех отделениях Банка Компаньона.
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ИНИЦИАТИВНЫХ ТРЕНИНГОВ

ДОМОХОЗЯЙСТВ

СЕЛ
ИНИЦИАТИВЫ РАЗВИТИЯ
Команда развития Банка Компаньона предоставляет возможность уязвимым сообществам в
отдаленных регионах пройти годовое обучение по двум направлениям: «Эко - сад» (агрономия) и
«Управление домашним скотом» (животноводство). Специалисты банка помогают домохозяйствам
управлять производственными активами (приусадебные участки, скот) и природными ресурсами
(летние и зимние пастбища, водные ресурсы). Применив полученные знания и навыки, домохозяйства
улучшают качество урожая и повышают продуктивность скота, что приводит к увеличению их
доходов. За 6 лет агрономы и ветеринары Банка Компаньон провели 14 800 тренингов, в которых
приняли участие 35 300 домохозяйств из 850 сел Кыргызстана
МЕРОПРИЯТИЯ ДЛЯ СООБЩЕСТВ
Обучающие инициативы развития дополняются ежегодными масштабными мобилизационными
мероприятиями в сельской местности. Банк Компаньон проводит сельскохозяйственные ярмарки,
фестивали развития «Айыл Алга», традиционный Яблочный фестиваль. На открытую площадку мы
приглашаем производителей и покупателей сельскохозяйственной продукции, представителей
биолабораторий, питомников, владельцев племенного скота, переработчиков для заключения
взаимовыгодных контрактов и установления прямых рыночных связей. Основная цель данных
мероприятий - содействие развитию сельского хозяйства и рыночных связей для укрепления
экономического потенциала сообществ
СИСТЕМА ОЦЕНКИ ВОЗДЕЙСТВИЯ
Система Оценки Воздействия (СОВ) – интегрированная система индикаторов, позволяющих
измерять и оценивать воздействие финансовых услуг и услуг развития на домохозяйства и
бизнес клиентов, отслеживать и понимать влияние деятельности компании на самодостаточность
домохозяйств и продвижение финансовой интеграции. СОВ разработана и внедрена специалистами
банка и является уникальным инструментом работы с данными. Система позволяет осуществлять
автоматизированный и регулярный сбор данных с использованием мобильных устройств, хранение
данных в централизованной базе и анализ данных путем применения различных аналитических и
статистических методов. Согласно полученным данным СОВ, финансовые и нефинансовые услуги
Банка Компаньон оказывают положительное воздействие на сельские сообщества.
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Животноводство - выгодное вложение средств!
с. Бору, Ошская область

Алайчиева Мастура с помощью супруга
и сына успешно ведет свой бизнес.
Мастура - мама троих сыновей, сейчас на
пенсии. Самый младший сын со своей
семьей живёт вместе с родителями и
существенно помогает по хозяйству.
Предпринимательница впервые услышала
о Компаньоне в 2005 году. Она уговорила
соседей создать группу и взять кредит,
который они успешно погасили спустя год.
Деньги от первого кредита пошли на покупку
тёлочки. В последующие семь лет Мастура также брала
кредиты в Компаньоне на покупку скота. Параллельно женщина участвовала
в тренингах по финансовой грамотности и управлению домашним скотом.
Применяя полученные знания на практике, спустя 11 лет ей удалось увеличить
поголовье скота до 14-ти голов. Свой успех Мастура связывает с соблюдением
дисциплины, а также строгого учёта доходов и расходов.

ˮ

Я бы очень хотела пожелать
предпринимателям, которые планируют
открыть свой бизнес, начинать с
малых сумм. А также обязательно
руководствоваться чётким расчётом
распределения финансов. Ну и самое
главное правило - использовать кредит
по назначению.

„

В ближайшее время семья планирует взять кредит на
дальнейшее расширение бизнеса. Мастура с супругом
постепенно идут к своей мечте - создать полноценную
ферму со всеми условиями для содержания домашнего скота.
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Яркий пример уверенного стартового бизнеса женщин!
г. Каракол, Иссык-Кульская область
Кипекова Гульнур имеет высшее экономическое
образование по специальности “Бухгалтерский
учёт и аудит”, а также среднее медицинское
образование. Прежде чем начать свой бизнес,
она работала медицинской сестрой и на
производстве хлебобулочных изделий. Гульнур
искала своё призвание, поэтому попробовала
свои силы в разных сферах. Другая совладелица
бизнеса , Эстебесова Айзада, раньше работала в
сфере торговли и общепита.
В 2015 году женщины решили взять групповой кредит
и совместно начали бизнес в сфере животноводства (откорм скота). Успешно
реализовав этот бизнес-проект, они досрочно погасили кредит. В 2016 году успешные
предприниматели получили второй кредит, добавили полученную прибыль от
первого проекта и собственные средства, и занялись молочным скотоводством.
Начали с приобретения коров молочной продуктивности и нетелей швицкой
и голштино-фризской пород. В данное время у
предпринимателей имеется девять коров. После
отела коров, предприниматели планируют
увеличить надои молока до 100 литров
ежесуточно. Прибыль от данного бизнеса
еще незначительна. Но в ближайших планах
- увеличение дойных коров, строительство
коровника и приобретение земельного
надела для выращивания кормов.
Сотрудничая с Банком Компаньон, мы
получили возможность открыть свой бизнес.
Мы постоянно участвуем в фестивалях и
выставках, которые организует Компаньон
и активно пользуемся расчётами, которые уже
сделаны специалистами Банка. Постоянно консультируемся с ветеринарами
Компаньона. Мы не понаслышке знаем, как непросто начать собственный
бизнес. Поэтому очень хочется пожелать начинающим предпринимателям сил
и терпения!
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Любовь к своему делу - главный секрет успеха!
г. Токтогул, Джалал-Абадская область
Мангиева Сыргажан - успешный клиент нашего Банка. Сотрудничество с
Компаньоном началось с 2007 года. К тому времени Сыргажан уже начала свой
бизнес. Она торговала на базаре овощами и фруктами. Тогда у неё появилась мечта
- развить свой бизнес и построить собственный контейнер. Посоветовавшись со
своими коллегами на рынке, они вместе решили
создать группу и взяли кредит в Компаньоне.
Результат - добротный контейнер, в
котором удобно и комфортно торговать
на рынке.
До сотрудничества с
Компаньоном я нигде не
брала кредиты. Когда
очень нужны были деньги,
брала под проценты у
ростовщиков. Процентные
ставки были просто огромные.
Теперь же я сотрудничаю
только с Банком Компаньон и ни
разу не пожалела о своём решении
В данный момент Сыргажан планирует построить контейнер, в котором ее
супруг будет торговать овощами и фруктами.
Я связываю свой успех в бизнесе с трудолюбием. Очень важно
любить то дело, которым ты занимаешься. И тогда все
обязательно получится!
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Пример успешного фармацевтического бизнеса в селе!
с. Сокулук, Чуйская область
Гульнара Сарымбетова - владелица двух аптек. Бизнес начала в конце 90-х
годов. Гульнара выкупила двухкомнатную квартиру в центре села Сокулук и
переоборудовала ее под аптеку. Работала день и ночь, но так как количество
товара было минимальным, прибыль была совсем небольшая. В 2007 году
женщина в составе группы получила кредитные средства, за счёт которых
удалось купить партию фармацевтики и увеличить ассортимент товара. Очень
скоро товарооборот увеличился, соответственно прибыль тоже выросла.
Позже предпринимательница взяла ещё один кредит, чтобы переоборудовать
контейнер под аптеку в соседнем селе. Таким образом, грамотное
распределение средств и правильные вложения позволили Гульнаре увеличить
товарооборот более чем в десять раз.
Когда я брала первый кредит, то я
немного переживала - чувствовала
ответственность не только за себя,
но и за всех членов группы. Но сейчас
я понимаю, что если использовать
кредитные средства по назначению,
а также правильно и рационально
распоряжаться доходами, то бизнес
будет процветать, а прибыль
будет только увеличиваться.
Например, я распределяю прибыль
таким способом: делю дневную
выручку на части и раскладываю по
разным конвертам. В первом конверте
находятся средства для погашения
кредита, во втором - сумма, которую я
пополняю, как говорится, на “чёрный день”. Оставшаяся большая
часть средств идёт на развитие бизнеса и ежедневные нужды. Таким
образом, у меня нет проблем с погашением кредита. И сотрудники
банка часто хвалят меня за образцовое погашение в срок. Начинающим
предпринимателям хочу пожелать никогда не опускать руки. Банковские
услуги принесут только пользу, если научиться грамотно ими
распоряжаться.
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ПОДТВЕРЖДЕНИЕ РУКОВОДСТВА ОБ ОТВЕТСТВЕННОСТИ ЗА ПОДГОТОВКУ И
УТВЕРЖДЕНИЕ КОНСОЛИДИРОВАННОЙ ФИНАНСОВОЙ ОТЧЕТНОСТИ
За год, закончившийся 31 декабря 2016 года

Руководство отвечает за подготовку консолидированной финансовой отчетности, достоверно
отражающей во всех существенных аспектах финансовое положение закрытого акционерного
общества «Банк Компаньон» и его дочерних компаний (далее – «Группа») по состоянию на 31
декабря 2016 года, а также результаты еедеятельности, движение денежных средств и изменения
в капитале за год, закончившийся на указанную дату, в соответствии с Международными
стандартами финансовой отчетности (далее – «МСФО»).
При подготовке консолидированной финансовой отчетности руководство несет ответственность
за:
•

обеспечение правильного выбора и применение принципов учетной политики;

•

представление информации, в т.ч. данных об учетной политике, в форме, обеспечивающей
уместность, достоверность, сопоставимость и понятность такой информации;

•

раскрытие дополнительной информации в случаях, когда выполнения требований МСФО
оказывается недостаточно для понимания пользователями отчетности того воздействия, которое
те или иные сделки, а также прочие события или условия оказывают на консолидированное
финансовое положение и финансовые результаты деятельности Группы; и

•

оценку способности Группы продолжать деятельность в обозримом будущем.

Руководство также несет ответственность за:
•

разработку, внедрение и поддержание эффективной и надежной системы внутреннего
контроля Группы;

•

ведение учета в форме, позволяющей раскрыть и объяснить сделки Группы, а также
предоставить на любую дату информацию достаточной точности о консолидированном
финансовом положении Группы и обеспечить соответствие консолидированной финансовой
отчетности требованиям МСФО;

•

ведение бухгалтерского учета в соответствии с законодательством Кыргызской Республики;

•

принятие всех разумно возможных мер по обеспечению сохранности активов Группы; и

•

выявление и предотвращение фактов финансовых и прочих злоупотреблений.

Консолидированная финансовая отчетность Группы за год, закончившийся 31 декабря 2016 года,
была утверждена руководством Группы 13 марта 2017 года.
От имени Руководства:

Уланбек Термечиков
Председатель Правления
13 марта 2017 года
г. Бишкек
Кыргызская Республика
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ЗАКЛЮЧЕНИЕ НЕЗАВИСИМОГО АУДИТОРА
Акционерам и Совету директоров ЗАО «Банк Компаньон»
Мнение
Мы провели аудит консолидированной финансовой отчетности ЗАО «Банк Компаньон» и его
дочерних компаний (далее «Группа»), состоящей из консолидированного отчета о финансовом
положении по состоянию на 31 декабря 2016 года, консолидированного отчета о прибылях и
убытках и прочем совокупном доходе, консолидированного отчета об изменениях в капитале и
консолидированного отчета о движении денежных средств за год, закончившийся на указанную
дату, а также примечаний к консолидированной финансовой отчетности, включая краткий обзор
основных положений учетной политики.
По нашему мнению, прилагаемая консолидированная финансовая отчетность отражает достоверно
во всех существенных аспектах финансовое положение Группы по состоянию на 31 декабря 2016
года, а также ее финансовые результаты и движение денежных средств за год, закончившийся на
указанную дату, в соответствии с Международными стандартами финансовой отчетности (далее
«МСФО»).
Основание для выражения мнения
Мы провели аудит в соответствии с Международными стандартами аудита (далее «МСА»). Наши
обязанности в соответствии с этими стандартами описаны далее в разделе «Ответственность
аудитора за аудит консолидированной финансовой отчетности» нашего заключения. Мы независимы
по отношению к Группе в соответствии с Кодексом этики профессиональных бухгалтеров Совета
по международным стандартам этики для бухгалтеров (далее «Кодекс СМСЭБ»), и нами выполнены
прочие этические обязанности в соответствии с Кодексом СМСЭБ.
Мы полагаем, что полученные нами аудиторские доказательства являются достаточными и
надлежащими, чтобы служить основанием для выражения нашего мнения.
Прочая информация, включенная в годовой отчет Группы за 2016 год
Прочая информация включает информацию в годовом отчете Группы, кроме консолидированной
финансовой отчетности и нашего аудиторского отчета. Руководство несет ответственность за
прочую информацию.
Наше мнение о консолидированной финансовой отчетности не распространяется на прочую
информацию, и мы не выражаем какого-либо заключения в этом отношении.
В связи с нашей аудиторской проверкой консолидированной финансовой отчетности наша
ответственность заключается в том, чтобы прочитать прочую информацию и, при этом рассмотреть
вопрос о том, является ли информация существенно несовместимой с консолидированной
финансовой отчетностью, с нашим пониманием или существенно неверна по другим причинам.
Если на основании выполненной нами работы мы делаем вывод о существенном искажении
прочей информации, мы обязаны сообщить об этом факте. Мы не смотрели годовой отчет Группы
за 2016 год, поскольку он не был готов на дату нашего аудиторского заключения.
Ответственность руководства и лиц, отвечающих за корпоративное управление, за
финансовую отчетность
Руководство несет ответственность за подготовку и достоверное представление указанной
консолидированной финансовой отчетности в соответствии с МСФО и за систему внутреннего
контроля, которую руководство считает необходимой для подготовки консолидированной
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финансовой отчетности, не содержащей существенных искажений вследствие недобросовестных
действий или ошибок.
При подготовке консолидированной финансовой отчетности руководство несет ответственность
за оценку способности Группы продолжать непрерывно свою деятельность, за раскрытие в
соответствующих случаях сведений, относящихся к непрерывности деятельности, и за составление
отчетности на основе допущения о непрерывности деятельности, за исключением случаев, когда
руководство намеревается ликвидировать Группу, прекратить его деятельность или когда у него
нет реальной альтернативы таким действиям.
Лица, отвечающие за корпоративное управление, несут ответственность за надзор за процессом
подготовки консолидированной финансовой отчетности Группы.
Ответственность аудитора за аудит консолидированной финансовой отчетности
Наши цели заключаются в получении разумной уверенности в том, что консолидированная
финансовая отчетность в целом не содержит существенных искажений вследствие недобросовестных
действий или ошибок,и в выпуске аудиторского заключения, содержащего наше мнение. Разумная
уверенность представляет собой высокую степень уверенности, но не является гарантией того,
что аудит, проведенный в соответствии с Международными стандартами аудита, всегда выявит
существенное искажение при его наличии. Искажения могут быть результатом недобросовестных
действий или ошибок и считаются существенными, если можно обоснованно предположить,
что по отдельности или в совокупности они могли бы повлиять на экономические решения
пользователей, принимаемые на основе этой консолидированной финансовой отчетности.
В рамках аудита, проводимого в соответствии с Международными стандартами аудита, мы
применяем профессиональное суждение и сохраняем профессиональный скептицизм на
протяжении всего аудита. Крометого, мывыполняемследующее:
• выявляем и оцениваем риски существенного искажения консолидированной финансовой
отчетности вследствие недобросовестных действий или ошибок; разрабатываем и проводим
аудиторские процедуры в ответ на эти риски; получаем аудиторские доказательства, являющиеся
достаточными и надлежащими, чтобы служить основанием для выражения нашего мнения.
Риск не обнаружения существенного искажения в результате недобросовестных действий
выше, чем риск не обнаружения существенного искажения в результате ошибок, так как
недобросовестные действия могут включать сговор, подлог, умышленный пропуск, искаженное
представление информации или действия в обход системы внутреннего контроля;
• получаем понимание системы внутреннего контроля, имеющей значение для аудита, с целью
разработки аудиторских процедур, соответствующих обстоятельствам, но не с целью выражения
мнения об эффективности системы внутреннего контроля Группы;
• оцениваем надлежащий характер применяемой учетной политики и обоснованность
определенных руководством бухгалтерских оценок и раскрытия соответствующей информации;
• делаем вывод о правомерности применения руководством допущения о непрерывности
деятельности, и, на основании полученных аудиторских доказательств, вывод о том, имеется ли
существенная неопределенность в связи с событиями или условиями, которые могут вызвать
значительные сомнения в способности Группы продолжать непрерывно свою деятельность.
Если мы приходим к выводу о наличии существенной неопределенности, мы должны привлечь
внимание в нашем аудиторском заключении к соответствующему раскрытию информации в
консолидированной финансовой отчетности или, если такое раскрытие информации является
ненадлежащим, модифицировать наше мнение. Наши выводы основаны на аудиторских
доказательствах, полученных до даты нашего аудиторского заключения. Однако будущие
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события или условия могут привести к тому, что Группа утратит способность продолжать
непрерывно свою деятельность;
• проводим оценку представления консолидированной финансовой отчетности в целом, ее
структуры и содержания, включая раскрытие информации, а также того, представляет ли
консолидированная финансовая отчетность лежащие в ее основе операции и события так,
чтобы было обеспечено их достоверное представление.
• получаем достаточные надлежащие аудиторские доказательства в отношении финансовой
информации организаций и хозяйственной деятельности внутри Группы, чтобы выразить
мнение о консолидированной финансовой отчетности. Мы отвечаем за общее руководство,
контроль и проведение аудита Группы. Мыявляемсяединоличноответственнымизанашеаудитор
скоемнение.
Руководитель, ответственный за проведение аудита, по результатам которого выпущено настоящее
аудиторское заключение независимого аудитора, - Бахтиёр Эшонкулов.

______________________________
Бахтиёр Эшонкулов
Партнер по аудиту

_____________________________
Елизавета Цой
Аудитор / Генеральный Директор
ООО «Эрнст энд Янг Аудит»

Квалификационный сертификат аудитора
Серия А № 003, регистрационный номер
№ 00098 от 28 февраля 2006 года.

Лицензия на осуществление аудиторской
деятельности: Серия А, № 0036,
регистрационный номер № 0065, выдана
20 февраля 2010 года Государственной
службой регулирования и надзора за
финансовым рынком при Правительстве
Кыргызской Республики.

Адрес: 720011, Кыргызская Республика,
г. Бишкек, ул. Абдрахманова 191
13 марта 2017 года
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КОНСОЛИДИРОВАННЫЙ ОТЧЕТ О ПРИБЫЛЯХ И УБЫТКАХ
И ПРОЧЕМ СОВОКУПНОМ ДОХОДЕ
За год, закончившийся 31 декабря 2016 года
(в тысячах кыргызских сом)

Процентные доходы
Процентные расходы
Чистый процентный доход до формирования резерва под
обесценение активов, по которым начисляются проценты
Формирование резерва под обесценение активов,
по которым начисляются проценты
Чистый процентный доход
Чистый убыток по финансовым активам, отражаемым
по справедливой стоимости через прибыли или убытки
Чистый доход от курсовой разницы
Восстановление резерва под обесценение прочих активов
Доходы по услугам и комиссии
Расходы по услугам и комиссии
Прочие доходы
Чистые непроцентные расходы
Операционные доходы
Операционные расходы
Прибыль до налогообложения
(Расход)/экономия по налогу на прибыль
Чистая прибыль
Приходящаяся на:
- Акционеров банка
- Неконтрольные доли участия
Прочий совокупный доход
Итого совокупный доход
Приходящийся на:
- Акционеров банка
- Неконтрольные доли участия

Год,
Год,
закончившийся закончившийся
Приме31 декабря
31 декабря
чания
2016 года
2015 года
7, 27
1.571.838
1.671.875
7
(600.754)
(493.863)

8

9

27
10
11

971.084

1.178.012

(18.064)
953.020

(87.706)
1.090.306

(165.661)
(5.996)
5.553
7.338
(639)
16.008
(143.397)
809.623
(799.438)
10.185
8.272
18.457

(298.774)
26.684
–
–
(5.183)
16.433
(260.840)
829.466
(786.026)
43.440
(7.659)
35.781

18.457
–
18.457
–
18.457

35.781
–
35.781
–
35.781

18.457
–
18.457

35.781
–
35.781
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КОНСОЛИДИРОВАННЫЙ ОТЧЕТ О ФИНАНСОВОМ ПОЛОЖЕНИИ
На 31 декабря 2016 года
(в тысячах кыргызских сом)

Активы
Денежные средства и их эквиваленты
Средства в банках и прочих финансовых институтах
Инвестиционные ценные бумаги
Финансовые активы, отражаемые по справедливой
стоимости через прибыль или убыток
Кредиты, предоставленные клиентам
Основные средства
Нематериальные активы
Актив по отложенному налогу на прибыль
Актив по текущему налогу на прибыль
Прочие активы
Итого активы
Обязательства и капитал
Обязательства
Средства клиентов
Средства банков и прочих финансовых институтов
Субординированный долг
Обязательства по текущему налогу на прибыль
Прочие обязательства
Итого обязательства
Капитал
Уставный капитал
Эмиссионный доход
Нераспределенная прибыль
Итого капитал, относящийся к акционерам материнской
Организации
Неконтролируемые доли участия
Итого капитал
Итого обязательства и капитал

Примечания

31 декабря
2016 года

31 декабря
2015 года*

12
13
15

924.353
343.520
454.150

1,298.395
19.261
–

18
14
16
17
11

68.345
4.578.684
340.955
46.879
4.707
4.532
25.542
6.791.667

443.700
4.101.038
292.499
50.201
8.884
–
51.219
6.265.197

23
20
22
11
21

916.231
4.236.094
57.278
–
233.138
5.442.741

–
4.584.664
62.796

25

1.000.616
177.150
171.158

1.000.616
177.150
152.701

1.348.924
2
1.348.926
6.791.667

1.330.467
2
1.330.469
6.265.197

19

11.359

275.909
4.934.728

* Некоторые суммы в данной колонке не соответствуют консолидированной финансовой отчётности за 2015 год, так как они
отражают переклассификации, подробная информация о которых приведена в Примечании 6.
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КОНСОЛИДИРОВАННЫЙ ОТЧЕТ ОБ ИЗМЕНЕНИЯХ В КАПИТАЛЕ
За год, закончившийся 31 декабря 2016 года
(в тысячах кыргызских сом)

31 декабря 2014 года
Прибыль за год
Прочий совокупный доход
за год
Итого совокупный доход
Объявленные дивиденды
(Примечание 24)
Выпуск простых акций
(Примечание 24)
31 декабря 2015 года
Прибыль за год
Прочий совокупный доход
за год
Итого совокупный доход
31 декабря 2016 года

Уставный
капитал
650.400

Эмиссион
ный доход
–

–

–

–
–

Нераспреде- Неконтролиленная руемые доли
прибыль
участья
124.044
2
35.781

–

35.781

–
–

35.781

–
–

–
35.781

–

–

(7.124)

–

(7.124)

350.216
1.000.616

177.150
177.150

–
152.701

–
2

527.366
1.330.469

–

–

18.457

–

18.457

–
–

–
–

–
18.457

–
–

–
18.457

1.000.616

177.150

171.158

2

1.348.926
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Итого
капитал
774.446
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КОНСОЛИДИРОВАННЫЙ ОТЧЕТ О ДВИЖЕНИИ ДЕНЕЖНЫХ СРЕДСТВ
За год, закончившийся 31 декабря 2016 года
(в тысячах кыргызских сом)

Движение денежных средств от операционной
деятельности
Проценты полученные
Проценты уплаченные
Комиссионные полученные
Комиссионные уплаченные
Прочие операционные доходы
Операционные расходы
Движение денежных средств от операционной
деятельности до изменения операционных активов и
обязательств
Изменение в операционных активах и обязательствах
(Увеличение)/уменьшение операционных активов
Средства в банках и прочих финансовых институтах
Кредиты, предоставленные клиентам
Финансовые активы, отражаемые по справедливой
стоимости через прибыли или убытки
Прочие активы
(Увеличение)/уменьшение операционных обязательств
Средства клиентов
Прочие обязательства
Приток денежных средств от операционной
деятельности до налогообложения
Налог на прибыль уплаченный
Чистый приток денежных средств от операционной
деятельности
Движение денежных средств от инвестиционной
деятельности
Погашение ценных бумаг
Покупка ценных бумаг
Приобретение основных средств и нематериальных
активов
Поступления от реализации основных средств
Чистый отток денежных средств от инвестиционной
деятельности

Примечания

Год,
закончившийся
31 декабря
2016 года

Год,
закончившийся
31 декабря
2015 года

1.536.530
(613.232)
7.338
(639)
1.322
(934.810)

1.667.990
(490.035)
–
(5.164)
16.432
(992.444)

(3.491)

196.779

(359.971)
(476.831)

1.080
304.884

199.249
9.893

680.031
6.868

910.736
10.938

–
8.676

290.523

1.198.318

(3.441)

(8.000)

287.082

1.190.318

116.000
(562.885)

–
–

(74.049)
540

(65,887)
–

(520.394)

(65,887)
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Движение денежных средств от финансовой
деятельности
Поступления средств банков и прочих финансовых
институтов
Погашение средств банков и прочих финансовых
институтов
Поступление от увеличения капитала
Дивиденды выплаченные
Чистый отток денежных средств от финансовой
деятельности

Примечания

Влияния изменения курса иностранной валюты на
денежные средства и их эквиваленты
Чистое уменьшение денежных средств и их
эквивалентов
Денежные средства и их эквиваленты, на начало года
Денежные средства и их эквиваленты, на конец года

12
12

Год,
закончившийся
31 декабря
2016 года

Год,
закончившийся
31 декабря
2015 года

2.682.618

649.714

(2.767.674)
–
–

(1.770.194)
527.366
(7.124)

(85.056)

(600.238)

(55.674)

147.352

(374.042)

671.545

1.298.395
924.353

626.850
1.298.395
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